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BOARD OF EDUCATION CALDWELL-WEST CALDWELL

Harrison School Building
Gray Street, West Caldwell, New Jersey 070006

Kerry A. Keane
Business Administrator/Board Secretary (973) 228-33060

October 2, 2012

Honorable President and

Members of the Board of Education
Caldwell-West Caldwell Board of Education
County of Essex, New Jersey 07006

Dear Board Members:

The comprehensive annual report of the Caldwell-West Caldwell School District for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2012 is hereby submitted. Responsibility for both the accuracy of the data and
completeness and fairness of the presentation, including all disclosures, rests with the management
of the Board of Education. To the best of our knowledge and belief, the data presented in this report
is accurate in all material respects and is reported in a manner designed to present fairly the financial
position and results of operations of the various funds and account groups of the District. All
disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain an understanding of the District’s financial
activities have been included.

The comprehensive annual financial report is presented in four sections: introductory, financial,
statistical and single audit. The introductory section includes this transmittal letter, the District’s
organizational chart and a list of principal officials. The financial section includes the general
purpose financial statements and schedules, as well as the auditor’s report thereon. The statistical
section includes selected financial and demographic information, generally presented on a multi-year
basis. The District is required to undergo an annual single audit in conformity with the provisions of
the Single Audit Act of 1984 and the U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133,
“Audits of State and Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations”, and the State Treasury
Circular Letter 04-04 OMB, “Single Audit Policy for Recipients of Federal Grants, State Grants and
State Aid Payments”. Information related to this single audit, including the auditor’s report on the
internal control structure and compliance with applicable laws and regulations and findings and
recommendations are included in the single audit section of this report.

1) ENTITY AND ITS SERVICES REPORTING

The Caldwell-West Caldwell School District is an independent entity within the criteria
adopted by the GASB as established by GASB Statement #14. All funds and account groups
of the District are included in this report. The Caldwell-West Caldwell Board of Education
and all its schools constitute the District’s reporting entity.
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The District provides a full range of educational services appropriate to grade levels Pre-K
through 12. These include regular, vocational, as well as special education for handicapped
youngsters. The District completed the 2011-12 fiscal year with an enrollment of 2,564.0
students, which is a decrease of 33.1 students over the previous year’s enrollment. The
following details the changes in the student enrollment of the District over the last twenty
years:

Average Daily Enrollment

Student Percent
Fiscal Year Enroliment Change
201112 2,564.0 (1.20)
2010-11 2,597.1 0.93
2008-10 2,573.2 (2.97)
2008-09 2,652.0 0.00
2007-08 2,652.5 0.73
2006-07 2,633.4 0.92
2005-06 2,609.5 1.47
2004-05 2,571.8 0.62
2003-04 2,5665.9 0.23
2002-03 2,550.1 0.73
2001-02 2,531.8 0.85
2000-01 2,510.2 2.92
1999/00 2,439.0 2.02
1998-99 2,390.6 2.45
1997-98 2,333.5 0.14
1996-97 2,330.3 3.93
1995-96 2,242.3 0.00
1994-95 2,242.3 2.45
1993-94 2,188.7 1.79

2) ECONOMIC CONDITION AND OUTLOOK

Borough of Caldwell

The Borough of Caldwell has grown from a suburban municipality of a few homes and farms
to a fine, modern community of predominantly middle class families. The Township is
located in western Essex County, and has a land area of 1.20 square miles. Single family
homes predominate with a number of two and three family houses, and twenty-five
apartment complexes.

The Borough has almost no vacant land remaining for the development of single family
homes and its future growth is limited. A majority of the more than two hundred businesses
and commercial establishments are located along Bloomfield Avenue, which bisects the
Township from east to west and is a major shopping center for the area.

A well-balanced blend of historic preservation, coupled with the business community’s
support, should retain the chain of Caldwell’s past and meet the marketing needs of the
future.



November, 2012 Page Thfee

3)

Township of West Caldwell

The Township of West Caldwell is an attractive residential community located in the
northwest portion of Essex County, and has a land area of 5.28 square miles.

The Township is a community with a well-balanced economy, represented by a substantially
developed industrial, commercial and residential base. The residential development of West
Caldwell consists principally of single family owner-occupied homes. A Master Plan and
revised Zoning Ordinance and a Land Use Procedure Ordinance provide for an orderly
development of remaining land in the township and has been designed to maintain and
improve its desirable residential character, as well as a strong commercial base. Areas are
still available for several types of residential development as well as segregated areas for
light industrial and commercial use.

MAJOR INITIATIVES

During the 2011-12 school year, the district completed Year One of its new Five Year
Curriculum Plan. This work included revision of the K-12 Language Arts curriculum, the K-5
and 9-12 Science curriculum, and the K-12 Guidance curriculum. A key aspect of all work is
alighment with the new Common Core State Standards, which has also required the purchase of
new curriculum materials in language arts and mathematics.

New books for grade-level reading, as well as DRA 2 assessment kits, were purchased for
elementary school language arts assessment and instruction.

In order to upgrade technology available for student use, Chromebooks were purchased for
integration into both student computer labs and into elementary classrooms. This was the first
step toward improving access via use of Google Apps. Additional laptop purchases for teacher
use were also initiated.

District staff engaged in a variety of professional development initiatives, including collaboration
with other local districts, and the continued expansion of staff attendance at out-of-district
workshops. Initial professional development in connection with the state Observation and
Evaluation revision was conducted as well.

Another critical element of district staff development was the initial training of district staff on
the new Harassment, Intimidation, and Bullying legislation, including training of the district
Anti-bullying coordinator and school-level Anti-bullying specialists.
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4) INTERNAI ACCOUNTING CONTROLS

Management of the District is responsible for establishing and maintaining an internal control
structure designed to ensure that the assets of the District are protected from loss, theft or
misuse and to ensure that adequate accounting data are compiled to allow for the preparation
of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP).

The internal control structure 1s designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance
that these objectives are met.

The concept of reasonable agsurance recognizes that: (1) the cost of a control should not
exceed the benefits likely to be derived; and (2) the valuation of costs and benefits require
estimates and judgments by management.

As a recipient of federal and state financial assistance, the District also is responsible for
ensuring that an adequate internal control structure is in place to ensure compliance with
applicable laws and regulations related to those programs. This internal control structure is
also subject to periodic evaluation by the District management.

As part of the District’s single audit described earlier, tests are made to determine the
adequacy of the internal control structure, including that portion related to federal and state
financial assistance programs, as well as to determine that the District has complied with
applicable laws and regulations.

5) BUDGETARY CONTROLS

In addition to internal accounting controls, the District maintains budgetary controls. The
objective of these budgetary controls is to ensure compliance with legal provisions embodied
in the annual appropriated budget approved by the voters of the municipality. Annual
appropriated budgets are adopted for the general fund and the debt service fund. Project
length budgets are approved for the capital improvements accounted for in the capital
projects fund. The final budget amount as amended for the fiscal year is reflected in the
financial section.

An encumbrance accounting system is used to record outstanding purchase commitments on
a ling item basis. Open encumbrances at year end are either cancelled or are re-appropriations
of fund balance in the subsequent year. Those amounts to be re-appropriated are reported as
reservations of fund balance at June 30, 2012,

6) ACCOUNTING SYSTEM AND REPORTS

The District’s accounting records reflect generally accepted accounting principles, as
promulgated by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). The accounting
system of the District is organized on the basis of funds and account groups. These funds
and account groups are explained in “Notes to the Financial Statements”, Note 1.
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Expenditures

201011 % of 200810 % of

Amount Total Amount Total

Current Expenses:

Instruction $ 18,775,468.40 38.12% $ 16,002,847.85 38.45%

Undistributed 24,540,506.82 55.76% 23,114,529.02 55.53%

Community Sendices - - 57,836.90 0.14%
Capital Outlay 655,177.82 1.49% 268,083.55 0.64%
Special Revenue:

State 157,105.08 0.36% 167,005.68 0.40%

Other - - 0.00%

Federal 623,563.20 1.42% 754,884.20 1.81%
Debt Senvice:

Principal 645,000.00 1.47% 645,000.00 1.55%

Interest 584,921.88 1.38% 611,5628.13 1.47%

$ 43,981,743.20 100.00% $ 41,621,715.40 99.99%

The decrease in Current Expense - Instruction was mainly due to budgeted appropriation
reductions to meeting the loss of Sate aid and the State-mandated tax levy CAP. The Salaries
of teachers’ expenditures were $156,740.42 higher than the previous year, but the majority of
increase was from the salaried staff. The cost of in-district special education programs were
reduced by $66,337.91. This decrease was largely due to a decrease in the number of
students receiving home instruction. The area of school-sponsored co-curricular activities
and athletics was increased by $36,919.51.

There was an increase of $82,219.89 in the purchase of materials and supplies for the
educational program. The large part of this increase was for technology supplies that were
reserved encumbrances from the prior school yeat.

The Current Expense - Undistributed increase was driven by a $207,351.37 increase for
employee benefits, an increase of $246,740.78 for Special Education tuitions for students
attending out-of-district schools, required by their Individual Education Plan (TEP), increase
of $122,480.72 for contractual sick day payments to retirees. The above increases were
offset by a decrease of $69,041.44 for Purchased Professional Educational Services for
Special Education students who require services that are required by their IEP, but not
available by in-district staff.

The Special Revenue - Federal decrease was $131,321.00 for the ARRA Grant, which was
only funded through 6/30/11.



November, 2012 Page Seven

8) DEBT ADMINISTRATION

In June, 2008, the District issued debt of $14,765,000.00 which was approved by the
electorate at a December 2007 Referendum. The first principal payments will commence in
September 2010. The final maturity will be September 2024. The proceeds of this new bond
issue were placed in the Capital Projects Fund. Improvements that will be funded by these
bonds include vartous work at all the district facilities including re-roofing, masonry
restoration, new building fire alarm systems, boiler replacements, site renovations to address
safety concerns and improvements, building electrical upgrades, renovation to the high
school and middle school auditoriums, creation of small group instruction  rooms, and
upgrades to the high school and middle school kitchen equipment.

The District’s outstanding debt or general obligation bond is $13,475,000.00 as of June 30,
2012.

9) CASH MANAGEMENT

The investment policy of the District is guided in large part by state statute as detailed in
“Notes to the Financial Statements”, Note 2. The District has adopted a cash management
plan which requires it to deposit public funds in public depositories protected from loss under
the provisions of the Governmental Unit Deposit Protection Act (“GUDPA”). GUDPA was
enacted in 1970 to protect Governmental Units from a loss of funds on deposit with a failed
banking institution in New Jersey. The law requires governmental units to deposit public
funds only in public depositories located in New Jersey, where the funds are secured in
accordance with the Act.

10) RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board carries various forms of insurance, including but not limited to general liability,
automobile liability and comprehensive/collision hazard and theft insurance on property and
contents, and fidelity bonds. A complete listing of the District’s insurance is located in the
Statistical Section of this report.

11) OTHER INFORMATION

Independent Audit

State statutes require an annual audit by independent certified public accountants or
registered municipal accountants. The accounting firm of Samuel Klein and Company
completed this year’s audit. In addition to meeting the requirements set forth in state
statutes, the audit also was designed to meet the Circular A-133 and State Treasury Circular
Letter 04-04 OMB. The auditor’s report on the general-purpose financial statements and
combining and individual fund statements and schedules are included in the financial
section of this report. The auditor’s reports related specifically to the single  audit  are
included in the single audit section of this report,
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12) ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

We would like to express our appreciation to the members of the Caldwell-West Caldwell
Board of Education for their concern in providing fiscal accountability to the citizens of the
Township of West Caldwell and the Borough of Caldwell and thereby contributing their full
support to the development and maintenance of the District’s financial operation. We would
like to note our appreciation for the assistance rendered by all of the District’s staff who
helped in the preparation of this report.

Respectfully submitted,

! %C&, oon s__
James G. Heinegg Kerry A. Keane
Superintendent Business Administrator/Board Secretary
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SAMUEL KLEIN AND COMPANY
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NEwWaARE, N.J 07102-4543 ErEEmorn, N.J. 07728-2291
PrOowE (973) 624-G100 Pronm (732) 780-2600

Fax (973) 624-6101 Fax (732} 780-1030

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

The Honorable President and Members
of the Board of Education

Caldwell-West Caldwell School District

County of Essex

West Caldwell, New Jersey 07006

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, and each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Board of Education of the
Caldwell-West Caldwell School District in the County of Essex, State of New Jersey, as of and for the year
ended June 30, 2012, which collectively comprise the School District's basic financial statements as listed in
the table of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Caldwell-\West Caldwell School
District's management. Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our
audit.

We cenducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by
the Comptroller General of the United States; and audit requirements as prescribed by the Office of Schoo!
Finance, Department of Education and Regulatory Compliance, State of New Jersey. An audit includes
consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit programs that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinicn on the effectiveness of the
East Newark Borough School District's internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no
opinion. An audit also includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit
provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.

In our opinicn, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the
aggregate remaining fund information of the Caldwell-West Caldwell Board of Education, in the County of
Essex, State of New Jersey, as of June 30, 2012, and the respective changes in financial position and cash
flows, where applicable, for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a report dated October 2, 2012 on
our consideration of the Caldwell-West Caldwell Board of Education’s internal control over financial reporting
and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, grant agreements
and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal
control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of our audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of our
audit.

MEMBERS AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
www.samuelklein-cpa-rma.com
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The Management Discussion and Analysis and Budgetary Comparison Information on pages 19 through 26
are not a reguired part of the basic financial statements but are supplementary information required by
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. We have applied certain limited

procedures, which consisted principally of inguiries of management regarding the methods of measurement’
and presentation of the required supplementary information. However, we did not audit the information and-,

express ho opinion on it.

Our audit was conducted for the purpese of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the Caldwell-West Caldwell Board of Education’s basic financial statements. The accompanying
introductory section, and other supplementary information such as the combining and individual fund financial
statements, long-term debt schedules, and statistical table are presented for purposes of additional analysis
and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. The combining and individual fund financial
statements and long-term debt schedules have been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit
of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the
basic financial stalements taken as a whole. The introductory section and statistical table have not been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and accordingly, we
express no opinion on them.

The accompanying schedules of expenditures of federal awards and state financial assistance are presented
for purposes of additional analysis as required by U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133,
Audits of States, Local Governments, and Nonprofit Organizations; and New Jersey OMB'’s Circular 04-04,
Single Audit Policy for Recipients of Federal Grants, State Grants and State Aid respectively, and are not a
required part of the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated in all
material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

,ﬁm

JOSEPH ¥ FACCONE

sed Public\&chopl Accountant #194
OMZAN

SAMUEL KLEIN AND C
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTAN

Newark, New Jersey
October 2, 2012

17



REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION - PART |

18



MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

This section of the Caldwell-West Caldwell School District's annual financial report presents our discussion
and analysis of the District's financial performance during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012. Please read it
in conjunction with the District’s financial statements, which follow this section.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This annual report consists of three parts—management’s
discussion and analysis (this section), the basic financial
statements, and required supplementary information. The basic
financial statements include two kinds of statements that present different views of the District:

Figure A-1, Required Components of the
District’s Annual Financial Report

 The first two statements are government-wide financial ' -
statements that provide both long-term and short-term ., s Basic Reguired
information about the District’'s overall financial status. Descaasian Financial Supplementary
and Statements infarmation
* The remaining statements are fund financial statements that nalyacs
focus on individual parts of the government, reporting the
District's operations in more detail than the government-wide N
statements.
o The governmental funds statements tell how general i R
government services were financed in the short term as well
as what remains for future spending. Govermment Wide prand f"z
Statements Statements ?: ¢
o The proprietary fund statements reflect operations that are Statenents
financed and operated in a manner similar to private business
enterprises

* Fiduciary fund statements provide information about the Summary <> Detail
. financial relationships in which the District acts solely as a
trustee or agent for the benefit of others, to whom the resources in question belong.

The financial statements also include notes that explain some of the information in the financial statements
and provide more detailed data. The statements are followed by a section of required supplementary
information that further explains and supports the information in the financial statements. Figure A-1 shows
how the required parts of this annual report are arranged and related to one another.

Government-Wide Statements

The government-wide statements report information about the District as a whole using accounting methods
similar to those used by private-sector companies. The statement of net assets includes all of the
government's assets and liabilities. All of the current year's revenues and expenses are accounted for in the
statement of activities regardless of when cash is received or paid.

The two government-wide statements report the District's net assets and how they have changed. Net
assets—the difference between the District's assets and liabilities—is one way to measure the District's
financial health or position.
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Over time, increases or decreases in the District’s net assets are an indicator of whether its financial health is
improving or deteriorating, respectively.

* To assess the overall health of the District, one needs to consider additional nonfinancial factors such
as changes in the District's tax base, facility conditions, required educational programs and other
factors.

The government-wide financial statements of the District include the Governmental activities. Most of the
District's basic services are included here, such as instruction, extracurricular activities, curriculum and staff
development, health services and general administration. Property taxes finance most of these activities.
The School District maintains two business-like activities, the Food Service Program and a Continuing
Education Program.

Fund Financial Statements

The fund financial statements provide more detailed information about the District's most significant funds—
not the District as & whole. Funds are accounting devices that the District uses to keep track of specific
sources of funding and spending for particular purposes. The School District's major governmental funds are
the General Fund, the Special Revenue Fund, and Debt Service Fund.

The District has the following kinds of funds:

*» Governmental funds—Most of the District's basic services are included in governmental funds, which
focus on {1) how cash and other financial assets that can readily be converted to cash flow in and out
and (2) the balances left at year-end that are available for spending. Consequently, the governmental
fund statements provide a detailed short-ferm view that helps you determine whether there are more or
fewer financial resources that can be spent in the near future to finance the District's programs.
Because this information does not encompass the additional long-term focus of the government-wide
statements, additional information is provided at the bottom of the governmental funds statement, or on
the subsequent page, that explains the relationship (or differences) between them.

s Proprietary funds accrued to report the cost of providing goods and services to students on a continual
basis where the intent is {0 recover said costs through user charges.

e Fiduciary funds—The District is the trustee, or fiduciary, for certain funds. It is also responsible for
other assets that—because of a trust arrangement—can be used only for the trust beneficiaries. The
District is responsible for ensuring that the assets reported in these funds are used for their intended
purposes. All of the District's fiduciary activities are reported in a separate statement of fiduciary net
assets and a statement of changes in fiduciary net assets. These aclivities are excluded from the
District’s government-wide financial statements because the District cannot use these assets to finance
its operations.
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FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE DISTRICT AS A WHOLE

The Statement of Net Assets provides the perspective of the School District as a whole. Table 1 provides a
summary of the School District's Net Assets at June 30, 2012 compared to June 30, 2011.

TABLE 1
2012 2011 Change %
Assets
Current and Other Assets $ 5,500,504.26 $ 7.,702,358.54 % (2,201,854.28) -28.59%
Noncurrent Assets 18,390,162.35 15,936,490.33 2,.453,672.02 15.40%
Total Assets $ 23,890,666.61 $ 23,638,848.87 $ 251,817.74 1.07%
Liabilities

Current Liabilities $ 1,575,860.36 $ 1,646,603.87 $ (70,833.51) -4.30%
Long-Term Liabilities 13,454,735.38 14,180,970.12 (726,234.74) -5.12%

$ 15,030,595.74 $ 15,827,663.99 $ (797,068.25) -5.04%

Net Assets

Invested in Capitat Assets, Net of Debt $ 5,534,384 11 $ 437721252 $ 1,157,171.59 26.44%
Restricted for Other Purposes 2,6569,224.72 2,583,084.47 76,140.25 2.95%
Unrestricted 666,462.04 850,887.89 (184,425.85) -21.67%
Total Net Assets $ .8,860,070.87 $ 7.811,184.88 $ 1,048,885.99 13.43%
Reserve for Encumbrances $ 522,488.83 $ 804,214.58 $  (281,725.75) -35.03%
Appropriation to Subsequent Budget 1,065,000.00 1,065,000.00 - G.00%
Capital Reserve Account 1,071,735.89 713,869.99 357,865.90 50.13%
Restricted Net Assets $ 2,659,224.72 $ 2,583,084.57 $ 76,140.15 2.95%
Government Activities $  {16,911.81) $ 152,170.75 $ (169,082.56) -111.11%
Business-Type Activities 683,373.85 698,717.14 (15,343.29) -2.20%
Unrestricted Net Assets $ 666,462.04 $ 850,887.89 $ {184,425.85) -21.67%

The increase of $252,204.44 in Reserve for Encumbrances is for encumbrances in the Current Fund for
orders that have not been received by the District by the end of the fiscal year, June 30, 2012, and will be

rolled into the new fiscal year for payment.
The $666,462.04 of Unrestricted Net Assets represents the following:

2011

Governmental Activities
Business-Type Activities

$ (16,911.81)
683,373.85

Unrestricted Net Assets $ 666,462.04

The $(16,911.81) of Unrestricted Net Assets for Governmental Activities is after a reduction of $588,642.50
for Compensated Absences. ‘
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Compensated Absences due to retirements are District contractual employee obligations which have been
annually appropriated and paid through the General Fund Budget. The School District has never failed to
meet its contractual obligation for Compensated Absences and will continue to fund these liabilities in this

manner,

Table 2 shows the Changes in Net Assets for fiscal year 2012 and 2011.

TABLE 2

Program Revenues:
Charges for Services, Operating
Grants and Contributions
General Revenues:
Property Taxes
Unrestricted Federal and State
Aid
Investment Earnings
Other
Total Revenues

Program Expenses:
Instruction
Special Instruction
Other Special Education
Other Instruction
Tuition
Student and Instruction Related
Services
School Administrative Services
General Administrative Services
Central Services
Administration of Information
Technology
Operations and Maintenance
of Plant
Pupil Transportation
interest on Long-Term Debt
Total Expenses

Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets

Governmental Activities

2012 2011 Change %

$ 3,726,881.93 $ 3,417,758.50 $ 309,12543 9.04%
37,792,600.00 37,792,600.00 - 0.00%
1,527,089.00 1,290,795.00 236,294.00 18.31%
1,253.12 4,739.79 (3,486.67) -73.56%
228,282.06 215,989.39 12,292.67 5.69%
43,276,106.11 42,721,880.68 554,225.43 1.30%
18,183,951.88 17,288,069.78 895,882.10 5.18%
3,978,307.86 3,930,358.70 47.949.16 1.22%
444 188.35 437,846.27 6,342.08 1.45%
1,243,830.47 1,193,152.06 50,678.41 4.25%
2,510,238.81 2,263,498.03 246,740.78 10.90%
5,664,326.55 5,583,896.59 80,429.96 1.44%
2,504,563.57 2,400,576.37 103,987.20 4.33%
721,547.31 652,453.92 69,093.32 10.59%
697,968.69 655,997.03 41,971.66 6.01%
476,397.22 540,942 .65 (64,545.43) -13.55%
4,121,392.71 4,202,785.59 {81,392.88) -1.94%
1,075,174.64 1,126,584.55 {51,409.91) -4.56%
584,921,838 611,528.13 (26,606.25) -4.35%
42,206,809.94 40,887,689.67 1,319,120.27 3.23%
$ 1,089,296.17 $ 1,834,191.01 $ (764,894.84) 41.70%
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Business-Type Activities

2012 2011 Change Y%
Program Revenues:

Charges for Services $639,776.56 $741,772.61 $(101,996.05) -13.75%
General Revenues:

Investment Earnings 525.63 1,266.59 (740.96) -58.50%
Total Revenues 640,302.19 743,039.20 (102,737.01) -13.83%
Program Expenses:

Food Services 660,685.37 733,746.01 (73,080.64) -9.96%
Total Expenses 660,685.37 733,746.01 (73,060.64) -9.96%
Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets $ {(20,383.18) $ 9,293.19 .$ (29,676.37) -319.33%

The vast majority of all revenue to support the Caldwell-West Caldwell School District is collected through
local property taxes. Property taxes, as displayed in Table 2, made up a total of 87.33% of the revenue for
Governmental Activities. Tax levy is annually approved by the local municipalities at the Annual School
Elections to support the District operations. With the drastic reduction of $1,253.12 in interest rates last year,
the District reatized a reduction of $740.96 in Investment Earnings over the previous year. Unrestricted
Federal and State Aid made up only 3.53% of revenues for Governmental Activities for 2012.

The largest share of the Program Expenses for the District is for the cost of direct services to the District's
students. These services include Instruction, Special Instruction, Other Special Education, Other Instruction,
Tuition, Student and Instruction-Related Services. These direct services total $32,024,843.92 or 75.88% of
the total expenses for Governmental Activities displayed in Table 2 for 2012,

The next display, Table 3, shows the net cost of services. That is, it identifies the cost of these services
supported by tax revenue and unrestricted State entitlements.

TABLE 3
2012 2011 Change %
Instruction $ 20,722,782.14 $ 20,082,853.66 $ 639,92848 3.19%
Support Services:
Tuition 2,510,238.81 2,263,498.03 246,740.78 10.90%
Student and Instruction Related Services 5,275,532.86 5,111,709.22 163,823.64 3.20%
Board of Ed. Admin. Fiscal and Business 4.189,911.97 4,070,973.98 118,937.99 2.92%
Operations and Maintenance of Plant 4,121,392.71 4,202,785.59 (81,392.88) -1.94%
Pupil Transportation 1,075,174.64 1,126,584.55 (51,409.91) -4.56%
Interest on Long-Term Debt 584,921.88 6811,528.13 (26,606.25) -4.35%
Total Expenses $ 38,479,955.01 $ 37,469,933.16 $ 1,010,021.85 2 70%

A description of each service provided by the School District is detailed as foliows:

Instruction expenditures include activities directly dealing with the teaching of pupils and the

interaction between teacher and pupils.

Tuition expenditures are for Education Services for pupils residing in the School District and include
placements in private, county and state facilities.

Student and Instructional Related Services expenditures include the activities involved with assisting
staff with the content and process of teaching to pupils. Also, included are Attendance and Social
Work Services, Health Services and Guidance, Child Study and Educational Media Services.
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Board of Education, Administration, Fiscal and Business Expenditures are associated with
administration and financial supervision of the District.

Operation and Maintenance of Plant expenditures involve keeping the school grounds, buildings and
equipment in an effective working condition.

Pupil transportation is the expenditure for conveying students between home and scheol and from
school to other school activities as provided by state and federal law.

Interest on long-term debt expenditures are for interest on outstanding bonds.
Business-Type Activities

The Schooi District operates business type activities for the Food Service Program and the Adult Continuing
Education Program. The Food Service Program and Adult Continuing Education Program are self-supporting
and did not require board coniributions to support their operations during fiscal year 2012.

For the current school year, the Food Service Program had a decrease in Net Assats of $25,152.23. Ending
Net Assets for the Food Service Program was $539,477.72. The Adult Continuing Education Program had a
decrease of $4,769.05 in Net Assets. Ending Net Assets for the Adult Continuing Education Program was
$155,436.21.

Financial Analysis of the District’s Funds

The District's Governmental Funds are accounted for using the modified accrued basis of accounting.
Revenues from Governmental Fund Types totaled $43,276,106.11. The largest part of revenue comes from
the local tax levy, which makes up 87.33% of the total revenues. The increasing reliance on local tax levy is
caused by the lack of increased State funding and Federal funding. This trend of increasing local tax levy, at
least for the near future, will continue for the District.

General Fund Budgeting Highlights

The General Fund, Special Revenue Fund and Debt Service Fund are the most significant budgeted funds for
the School District. The District's budget for these three funds is prepared annually according to the State of
New Jersey budget regulations and requirements and is based on receipts, disbursements and an
encumbrance system of accounting.

in the 2004-05 school year, a new law went into effect, commonly known as “S1701." The implementation of
this law required districts to reduce their General Fund Balance at June 30th to 2% or less. The District's
General Fund Balance at June 30, 2012 was below the 2% requirement.

The new law also requires prior approval by the State Department of Education for districts’ appropriation
transfers which exceed 10% of the account. During fiscal year 2012, the District did amend its budget by
Board approved transfers, but none that exceeded the 10% rule, requiring the State Department approval.

The General Fund revenue continues to rely on the local tax levy as its main revenue stream. With the State
law imposing a 2% CAP on the tax levy increase and the historical low rates of returns on investments has
required the District {o look at significant decreases in Budget Appropriation.

The District took a very proactive look at all expenses and made significant reductions across all budgetary
lines. The main budget drivers continue to be employee health benefits and special education program costs.
The 2008 Bond Referendum has helped the District to maintain aid, and in many cases lower the operational
costs of the District's facilities.

24



Capital Assets and Debt Administration

Capital Assets

At the end of fiscal year 2012, the Caldwell-West Caldwell School District had $20,748,783.71 in Building and
Improvements, $229,918.00 in Land, $5,568,221.11 in Equipment and $15,229,581.25 in Construction-in-
Progress.

In accordance with the State Department of Education memorandum dated January 11, 2001, the
Capitalization threshold used by school districts in the State of New Jersey was increased to $2,000.

Table 4 below shows the Net Capital Assets after total accumulated depreciation:

TABLE 4
2012 2011 Change %

Land 3 229,918.00 5 229,918.00 $ - 0.00%
Construction-in-Progress 15,229,591.25 12,851,509.85 2,378,081.40 15.61%
Buildings and Improvementis 20,748,783.71 20,748,783.71 - 0.00%
Assets with the Value Under $2,000.00 47.909.26 47 909.26 - 0.00%
Equipment 5,668,221.11 5,415,397.34 152,823.77 2.74%
Totals at Historical Cost 41,824,423.33 39,293,518.16 2,530,905.17 6.05%
Total Accumulated Depreciation 23,768,301.06 23,373,607.80 394,693.26 1.66%
Net Capital Assets $ 18,056,122.27 $ 15919,01036 _$ 2136211.91  11.83%

Debt Administration

At June 30, 2012, the District had $13,475,000.00 in bonds outstanding, $645,000.00 due within one year.
More detailed information about the District's debt is presented in the notes to the financial statements.

TABLES

2012 2011 Change Y%
Bonds Payable $13,475,000.00 $14,120,000.00 $(645,000.00) -4.57%
Total Bonds Payable $13,475,000.00 $14,120,000.00 $(645,000.00) -4.57%

Economic Factors and Next Year's Budget

The District receives one of the lowest amounts of State and Federal aid in the State of New Jersey. Neither
the State or the Federal government have fully funded the District entitlements, as required under the law.

The District fully expended funding with the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009. The
$675,705 received in the form of a grant was expended, as required, for Special Education Programs. The
District decided to utilize the funds for technology equipment and supplies to support the District’s Special
Education Programs. Again, this was a “one shot” funding and now the District must budget for the proper
maintenance of this newly purchased equipment.
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The State has provided new laws which require employees to begin contributions toward their health care
benefits. This will offer budgetary relief in the health benefits appropriation, especially positive, since this is
one of the highest cost drivers in the hudget. Unfortunately, the largest group, the Teachers’ Association, has
a contract in effect until the end of the 2011-12 fiscal year and contributions will not become effective until the
2012-13 budget.

The new laws recently enacted by the Legislature affecting public employees’ pension has had an effect on
the number of retirements from the District. This will have ancther benefit as salary breakage will occur as
older staff retire and lower cost staff are hired.

The District looks forward to significant improvement in the economy of the State as well as nationally. The
future of the District's finances and programs will be dependent on the health of the government to help
relieve the extraordinary burden on our local taxpayers.

Contacting the District’s Financial Management

This financial report is designed fo provide our citizens, taxpayers and creditors with a general overview of the
District's finances and to demonstrate the District's accountability for the funding it receives. If you have any
gquestions about this report or need additional financial information, you can contact the Business
Administrator/Board Secretary’s office at Harrison School Building, Gray Street, West Caldwell, NJ 07006

Kog e Colloona—

Kerry A. Kéane
Business Administrator/Board Secretary
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BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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A. DISTRICT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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CALDWELL-WEST CALDWELL SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
JUNE 30, 2012

A
Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 2,303,917.70 $417,135.26 $ 2,721,052.96
Receivables, Net 600,686.14 31,267.15 631,953.29
Inventories 4,904.88 4,904.88
Restricted Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents 1,070,857.24 1,070,857.24
Capital Reserve Account - Cash 1,071,735.89 1,071,735.89
Capital Assets, Net (Note 5) 18,0566,122.27 334,040.08 18,390,162.35
Total Assets $23,103,318.24 $ 787.347.37 $ 23,890.656.61
LIABILITIES
Overdraft $ 8,347.44 $ 3 8,347.44
Accounts Payable 634,257.60 51,116.07 685,373.67
Interfunds Payable 157.72 157.72
Prepaid Revenue 41,317.37 41,317.37
Payable to State Government 35,411.92 35,411.92
Deferred Revenue 74,141.08 74,141.08
Noncurrent Liabilities (Note 7).
Due Within One Year 731,111.16 731,111.16
Due Beyond One Year 13,454,735.38 13,454 735.38
Total Liabilities $ 14,038,162.30 $ 92433.44 $ 15,030,505.74
NET ASSETS
Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt $ 5,522,844.03 $ 11,540.08 $ 5,534,384.11
Restricted for:
Other Purposes 2,659,224.72 2,659,224.72
Unrestricted {16,911.81) 683,373.85 666,462.04
Total Net Assets $ 8.165,156.94 $ 694,913.93 $ 886007087

See accompanying notes to financial statemenis.

29



Lgolo'ces's ¢ SEELB'PE9 & yeosl'sal’s §
8E'v8L'LLE L LL26Z'SLL 11'288'S60°L
66'G88'8¥0°'L (81£82'02) 11°692'690'L
8’67 BYSBE £9'6Z5 81 ¥CT6Y56E
00282922 90'282'922
SL8LL'L €9'5C5 zZiL'ese't
00680'LZ5°L 006802251
DO'REL'ZSR 00'8€2'258
op'esesesoe  § $ 00'Z98'6E6'9E  $

‘suaLUe)e)s |elcueuly o} sejcu Buifuedwosse sag

Buipu3 - sjossy JoN
Buuuibog - s}ossy 18N
syessy 1oN U ebuey)n

SJ3jsURI| pUB SWal|

AleUiploelxg ‘swayf fepadg ‘sonusaAsy [Blauao [B10]
BLICIU| SNOSUE|SISI
sBuLLeS JUusLisaAL|
pajoLIsay JON Ply @1BlS PUE Blapad

B0IAI9S 1620 JO} PAINaT SaXE L

18N ‘sasoding felauac) Joj painaT ‘sexe] Apadold
saxe]
SONUBNSH [elauasy

(zg'cog'oosee) § {Lg'806'02) & (L0'Ge6'6.F'38) § £6'188'0ZLC § - $ - $ 95'9.2'689 ¢ 1€225'298'2F ¢ JuswuIBAcH Alewid @101
(18'806'02) {rg'e06'02) 95'942'6E9 1£'589'009 saAnDy adAs-ssaushg ey
(19'808'02) {15°806'02) 95°9/44'829 1£'599'099 pun asudiajug
isanoy adAl-ssauisng
(L0'556'6.¥'8¢) (L0'G56'6.F'88) £6'188'92L°C ¥6'9£8'902'2F SAMPANDY [EJUSLIUIAAOL) (30 L
(89712685} (88’1 26'p8G) 88 LZ6'¥8G 1920 uuia] -Buo” b Jsaus|
(Pap21L'520'L) (P9PLL'SLD'L) POPLLSLOL uonepodsuery idng
(Liges1EL'y) (Lzzeg’teL'y) LLCBELZL'Y asueusjulely pue suopessdQ ueld
(g2 16C'041) 2z 168'0Ly) zZeiee'aly ABoIoUYDSL UoNELLIBIUS Jo Lolesiuipy
(69°896'£69) (69'296'£69) £9'806'269 Sa0IAIRS [BNUBD
(Le'pisiel) (Le'pig'tes) LE PG 1T STOIAIDS BANENSIHILPY [EISUBE)
(52 126'e62'2) (521 16'c62'2) £8°1L65'0LE 1S°E95'P0S'T S20IURS BAJRISILILIDY [00U0S
(08°2€5°'542'S) (ogzes'sie's) 29'66L'88¢E §5'9CE PE8's S20IAIRS PAJEISY UCNINASU; pue Juapns
(19°8e2°015'2) (18'8£2°015'2) L' 8ET'0LG'T oIl
:saopuag poeddng
(rocg'ere’t) (17oce'srz’y) 1P OsR'svE’L uojonAsul Jayo
(Lo'gLo'ves) (19°210°+6E) ¥ 69L'05 G881 viY uofphsu] [eedg J8UI0
(a¥"181'506'c) (8¥°282'505'€} 9L°025'2LF 99°202'8.6' uenesnp3 |epedg
{a5'gkL'BLG'SL) $ & (85°57L'626'5L) § 0E'808'V09'T $ $ $ 88°156'c8E'8L § JenBay
uononjsug
[E TN SONIALOY SERIAMOY SUCHNgUIU0, EEFILYETS UONEI Y S83IAI8S J0J Sasusdxg
adA]-ssauisng JEJUBULIBAOS) pUE sUBIS Jog sasuadxg sabreyn
s]assy 19N U] sebueysg BupesadQ sebieyn 19a11pu|
puUe shuaAsy (asuadx3) JoN sanuansy Wwedbolg
v

Z1L0Z ‘DE ENNC G3ANI WV3A IHLE HOL
SAILIAILOY 40O INJWILYLS
LORMLSIT TOOHDS TIAMATIVD LS3M-T1EMATVI

30



B. FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
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ASSETS

Cash and Cash Eguivalenis
Restricled Cash:
Capital Reserve Account
Interfunds Receivable
Receivables from Other Governments

Total Assels
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

Liapilities:
Overdraft
Accounts Payable
Interfunds Payable
Payable to State Government
Deferred Revenue
Total Liabilities

Fund Bajlances:
Reserved for:
Encumbrances
Designated for Subsequent Year's
Expenditures
Capital Reserve Account
Unreserved, Reported in:
General Fund
Capital Projects Fund
Total Fund Balances

Total Liabllities and Fund Balances

CALDWELL-WEST CALDWELL SCHOOL. DISTRICT
BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2012

B1
Special Capital Debt Total
General Revenue Projects Service Governmental
Fund Fund Ennd Eung Funds
$ 2,303,917.70 5 $ 1,070,857.24 $ $ 337477494
1,071,735.89 1,071,735.89
79.18 74,377.98 74,457.16
457,760.87 75478.73 67,446.54 600,686.14
$ 3,833,493.54 $ 75478.73 $ 1,138,303.78 $ 74,377.88 $ 5,121,654.13
$ $ B,347.44 5 $ ] 8,347.44
602,538.23 31,719.37 634,257.60
74,377.98 74,377.98
35,411.92 35,411.92
74,377.98 74,377.98
602,538.23 75,478B.73 74,377.98 74,377.98 826,772,892
522,488.83 1,049,049.54 1,571,538.37
1,0685,000.00 1,065,000.00
1,071,735.89 1,071,735.89
571,730.69 §71,730.69
14,876.26 14,876.26
3,230,055.41 1,063,925.80 4,294 881.21
$ 3,833,40364 $ 75478.73 $ 1,138,303.78 $ 74,377.98 $ 512165413

Total shown above

Amounts reported for governmental acfivities in the statement of
net assets (A-1) are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial
resources and therefore are not reported in the funds. The
cost of the assets is $37,9898,668.17 and the accumulated
depreciation is $22,978,914.54 (See Note 5).

Long-ierm liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and
payabie in the current pericd and therefore are not reported as
liabilities in the funds (See Note 7).

Net assets of governmental aciivities (A-1).

$ 4,294,881.21

18,056,122.27

(14,185,848.54)

$ 8,165,1566.94
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REVENUES

Local Sources:
Local Tax Levy
Transportation Fees
Inferest Eamed on Capital Reserve

Funds

Miscellaneous

Total - Local Sources

State Sources

Federal Sources

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current:
Regular Instruction
Special Education Instruction
Cther Special Instruction
Cther Instruction
Support Services:
Tuition
Student and Instruction Related Services
Schocl Administrative Services
Genaral Administrative Services
Central Services
Administration of Information Technology
Plant Operations and Maintenance
Pupii Transportation
Employee Benefits
Principal
Interest and Other Charges
Capital Qutlay
Total Expenditures

Excess {Deficiency) of Revenues
CQver Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers In

Transfers QOut

Total Other Financing Sources and Uses

Net Change in Fund Balances
Fund Balance - July 1

Fund Balance - June 30

CALDWELL-WEST CALDWELL SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

B2

Special Capital Debt Total
General Revenue Projects Service Governmental

Fund Eund Eung Fund Funds
$ 36,835,862.00 3 $ $ 85273800 $ 37,792,600.00
1,160.62 1,180.62
92.50 92.50
221,282.18 £,995.88 228,282.08
37,162,397.30 6,999.88 852,738.00 36,022,135.18
4,049,550.65 157,105.08 370,184,00 4,576,839.73
§3,568.00 623,563.20 677,131.20
41,285,515.95 780,668,268 6,599.88 1,222,922.00 43,276,106.11
12,210,075.52 453,601.11 12,663,676.63
2,770,617.25 2,770,617.25
311,426.15 311,496.15
1,029,678.37 1,029,678.37
2,510,238.81 2,510,238.81
4,337 24512 327,067.17 4,664,312.29
1,827,198.81 1,827,198.81
630,775.37 §30,775.37
564,932.42 554,932 42
562,856.82 562,856.82
3,6823,408.53 3,623,406.53
1,036,694 60 1,036,584.60
9,120,181.17 9,120,191.17
645,000.00 645.000.00
584,921.88 584,921.88
855,117.82 1,884 428 35 2,539,546.17
41,180,424.75 780,668.28 1,884,428.35 1,229,921.88 45,085,443.27
765,091.19 {1,877,428.47) {6,299.88) (1,809,337.186)
148,000.00 §,009.88 155,999 83
{149,000.00) (6,959.88) {155,899.88)

{149,000.00) 142,000.12 §,999.88 -

{73,908.81) (1,735,4258.35) (1,808,337.16)
3,304,864.22 2,799,354.15 6,104,218.37
$  3,230,955.41 $ - $ 1,063,925.80 $ - $ 4,204881.29
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CALDWELL-WEST CALDWELL SCHOOL DISTRICT
RECONCILIATION OF STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE IN GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Total Net Change in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds (from B-2)

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities (A-2) are
different because:

Capital outlays are reported in governmental funds as expenditures. However, in
the statement of activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated
useful lives as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which depreciation
exceeded capital outlay in the period.

Depreciation Expense
Capital Outlays

Repayment of bond principal is an expenditure in the governmental funds, but the
repayment reduces long-term liabilities in the statement of net assets and is not
reported in the statement of activities.

In the statement of activities, certain operating expenses, e.g., compensated
absences (vacations) are measured by the amounts earned during the ysar. In the
governmental funds, however, expenditures for these items are reported in the
amount of financial resources used (paid). When the earned amount exceeds the
paid amount, the difference is reduction in the reconciliation (-); when the paid
amount exceeds the earned amount the difference is an addition fo the
reconciliation {(+).

Change in Net Assets of Governmental Activities (A-2]

$ (403,334.26)

2,539,546.17

$(1,809,337.16)

2,136,211.91

645,000.00

97,394.42

$ 1,069,269.17
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PROPRIETARY FUNDS
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CALDWELL-WEST CALDWELL SCHOOL DISTRICT
COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2012

B-4
Business-Type Activities -
Enterprise Funds
Food Continuing
Service Education Totals
ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 223,529.05 $ 193,606.21 $ 417 135.26
Accounts Receivable 31,267.15 31,267.15
Inventories 4,904.88 4,904.88
Total Current Assets 259,701.08 193,608.21 453,307.29
Noncurrent Assets:
Furniture, Machinery and Eguipment 591,040.47 591,040.47
Less Accumulated Depreciation (257,000.39) (257,000.39)
Total Noncurrent Assets 334,040.08 334,040.08
Total Assets $ 593,741.16 $ 193,606.21 $ 787,347.37
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:
Accounts Payable $ 51,116.07 $ $ 51,116.07
Prepaid Revenue 3,147.37 38,170.00 41,317.37
Total Current Liabilities 54,263.44 38,170.00 92.433.44
NET ASSETS
Invested in Capital Assets, Net of
Related Debt 11,540.08 11,540.08
Unrestricted 527,937.64 155,436.21 683,373.85
Total Net Assets $ 539,477.72 $ 155,436.21 $ 5694,913.93




CALDWELL-WEST CALDWELL SCHOOL DISTRICT
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Operating Revenues:
Charges for Services:
Daily Sales - Nonreimbursable Programs
Special Functions
Total Operating Revenues

Operating Expenses:
Cost of Sales
Salaries
Other Purchased Professional Services
General Supplies
Other
Depreciation
Total Operating Expenses

Cperating Gain (Loss)
Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses).
Interest and Investment Revenue
Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)
Change in Net Assets
Total Net Assets - Beginning

Total Net Assets - Ending

B:5
Business-Type Activities -
Enterprise Fund
Food Continuing Total

Service Education Enterprise
$ 411,442.52 $ 203,897.46 $615,330.98
23,499.38 23,499.38
434,941.90 203,897.46 638,839.36
162,075.39 162,075.39
185,573.85 169,188.43 384,762.28
19,371.00 19,371.00
28,598.68 28,508.68
59,900.93 59,800.93
5,039.89 5,039.89
460,559.74 199,188.43 659,748.17
(25,617.84) 4,709.03 (20,908.81)
465.61 60.02 525.63
465.61 60.02 525.63
{25,152.23) 4,769.05 (20,383.18)
564,629.95 150,667.16 715,287.11
$ 539,477.72 $ 155,436.21 $ 694,913.93
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CALDWELL-WEST CALDWELL SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

BS
Business-Type Activities -
Enterprise Funds
Food Continuing Total
Service Education Enterprise
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from Customers $ 435,824.87 $ 209,097.46 $ 644,922.33
Payments to Other Operating Expenses (448,237.41) (199,188.43) (647,425.84)
Net Cash Provided by {(Used for) Operating Activities {(12,412.54) 9,909.03 (2,503.51)
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Purchases of Capital Assets (322,500.00) {322,500.00)
Net Cash Provided by (Used for) Capital and
Related Financing Activities {322,500.00) {322,500.00)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest and Dividends 455.681 80.02 525.63
Net Cash Provided by (Used for) Investing Activities 485.61 60.02 525.63
Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents (334,446.93) 9,969.05 (324,477.88)
Balances - Beginning of Year 557,975.98 183,637.16 741,613.14
Balances - End of Year $ 223,520.05 $ 193,606.21 $ 417,135.28
Reconciliation of Operating Income (lL.oss) to Net Cash
Provided by (Used for) Operating Activities:
Operating Income (Loss) $ (25617.84) $ 4,709.03 $ (20,908.81)
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income (Loss) to Net
Cash Provided by (Used for) Operating Activities:
Depreciation and Net Amortization 5,039.89 5,039.89
(Increase) Decrease in Accounts Receivable, Net 55.00 55.00
(Increase) Decrease in Inventories (2,135.59) (2,135.59)
Increase (Decrease) in Accounts Payable 9,418.03 9,418.03
Increase (Decrease) in Prepaid Revenue 827.97 5,200.00 6,027.97
Total Adjustments 13,205.30 5,200.00 18,405.30
Net Cash Provided by (Used for) Operating Activities 3 (12,412.54) $ 9,909.03 $ (2,503.51)
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FIDUCIARY FUNDS
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CALDWELL-WEST CALDWELL SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS

ASSETS

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Total Assets
LIABILITIES

Accounts Payable
Payroll Deductions and Withholdings

Total Liabilities

NET ASSETS
Held in Trust for Unemployment
Claims and Cther Purposes

FIDUCIARY FUNDS
JUNE 390, 2012

Unemployment
Compensation
Trust

$ 141,256.23
$ 141,266.23

$ 141,256.23

Agency
Fund

$ 218,345.98
$ 218,345.98

$218,139.25

208.73

$ 218,345.98
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CALDWELL-WEST CALDWELL SCHOCL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

ADDITIONS
Contributions:
Plan Member
Total Contributions
Investment Earnings:
Interest
Net Investment Earnings

Total Additions
DEDUCTIONS
Quarterly Contribution Reports
Unemployment Claims
Total Deductions
Change in Net Assets

Net Assets - Beginning of the Year

Net Assets - End of the Year

FIDUCIARY FUNDS

Unemployment
Compensation
Trust

$ 60,188.76
60,188.76

65.15
65.15

60,253.91

16,875.84
115,660.07

132,535.91

(72,282.00)

213,538.23

$ 141,256.23
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1.

CALDWELL-WEST CALDWELI. SCHOOL DISTRICT

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

DESCRIPTION OF THE SCHOOQL DISTRICT AND REPORTING ENTITY

The Caldwell-West Caldwell School District (the “District”) is a Type |l district located in the County of
Essex, State of New Jersey. As a Type |l district, the District functions independently through a Board of
Education (the “Board"). The purpose of the District is to educate students in grades K-12. The District
had an approximate enrollment at June 30, 2012 of 2,595 students.

A reporting entity is comprised of the primary government, component units and other organizations that
are included to insure that the financial statements of the District are not misleading. The primary
government consists of all funds, departments, boards and agencies that are not legally separate from
the District. For the District, this includes general operations, food service and student related activities of
the District.

The primary criterion for including activities within the District's reporting entity, as set forth in Section

2100 of the GASB Cadification of Governmental Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards, is
whether:

the organization is legally separate (can sue or be sued in their own name)

the District holds the corporate powers of the organization

the District appoints a voting majority of the organization’s board

the District is able to impose its will on the organization

the organization has the potential to impose a financial benefit/burden on the District
there is a fiscal dependency by the organization on the District

Based on the aforementioned criteria, the District has no component units.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements of the District have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) as applied to governmental units. The
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for
establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The District also applies
Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Statements and Interpretations issued on or before
November 30, 1289, to its governmental activities provided they do not conflict with or contradict GASB
pronouncements. The most significant of the District’s accounting policies are described below,

A. Basis of Presentation

The Districts basic financial statements consist of government-wide statements, including a
statement of net assets and a statement of activities, and fund financial statements that provide a
more detailed level of financial information.

1. Government-Wide Financial Statements

The statement of net assets and the statement of activities display information about the District
as a whole. These statements include the financial activities of the primary government, except
for fiduciary funds.



2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

A. Basis of Presentation (Continued)

1.

Government-Wide Financial Statements (Continued)

The statement of net assets presents the financial condition of the governmental activities of the
District at year-end. The statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses
and program revenues for each program or function of the District's governmental activities.
Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated with a service, program or department
and therefore clearly identifiable to a particular function. Program revenues include charges paid
by the recipient of the goods or services offered by the program, grants and contributions that are
restricted to meeting the operaticnal or capital requirements of a particular program. Revenues
that are not classified as program revenues are presented as general revenues of the District,
with certain limited exceptions. The comparison of direct expenses with program revenues
identifies the extent to which each governmental function is self-financing or draws from the
general revenues of the District.

Fund Financial Statements

During the year, the District segregates transactions related to certain District functions or
activities in separate funds in corder to aid financial management and to demonstrate legal
compliance.

Fund financial statements are designed to present financial information of the District at this more
detailed level. The focus of governmental fund financial statements is on major funds. Each
major fund is presented in a separate column.

B. Fund Accounting

The District uses funds to maintain its financial records during the fiscal year. A fund is defined as a
fiscal and accounting entity with a self-balancing set of accounts.

1.

Governmental Funds

Governmental funds are those through which most governmental functions typically are financed.
Governmental fund reporting focuses on the sources, uses and balances of current financial
resources. Expendable assets are assigned to the various governmental funds according to the
purposes for which they may or must be used. Current liabilities are assigned to the fund from
which they will be paid. The difference between governmental fund assets and liabilities is
reporied as fund balance. The following are the District's major governmental funds:

General Fund - The General Fund is the general operating fund of the District. [t is used
to account for all financial resources except those required to be accounted for in another
fund. Included are certain expenditures for vehicles and movable instructional or
noninstructional equipment that are classified in the Capital Outlay subfund.

As required by the New Jersey State Department of Education, the District includes
budgeted Capital Outlay in this fund. Accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America (GAAP) as they pertain to governmental entities state that
General Fund resources may be used to directly finance capital outlays for long-lived
improvements as long as the resources in such cases are derived exclusively from
unrestricted revenues.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

B. Fund Accounting (Continued)

1.

2.

Governmental Funds (Continued)

General Fund (Continued)

Resources for budgeted capital outlay purposes are normally derived from State of New
Jersey Aid, district faxes and appropriated fund balance. Expenditures are those that
resulf in the acquisition of or additions to fixed assets for land, existing buildings,
improvements of grounds, construction of buildings, additions to or remodeling of
buildings and the purchase of built-in equipment. These resources can be fransferred
from and to Current Expense by board resolution.

Special Revenue Fund - The Special Revenue Fund is used to account for the proceeds
of specific revenue from State and Federal Government, (other than major capital
projects, Debt Service or the Enterprise Funds) and local appropriations that are legally
restricted to expenditures for specified purposes.

Capital Projects Fund - The Capital Projects Fund is used to account for all financial
resources to be used for the acquisition or construction of major capital facilities (other
than those financed by Proprietary Funds). The financial resources are derived from
temporary notes or serial bonds that are specifically authorized by the voters as a
separate question on the ballot either during the annual election or at a special election.

Debt Service Fund - The Debt Service Fund is used to account for the accumulation of
resources for, and the payment of principal and interest on bonds issued to finance major
property acquisition, construction and improvement programs.

Permanent Fund - The Permanent Fund is used to account for assets held under the
terms of a formal trust agreement, whereby the District is under obligation to maintain the
trust principal.

Proprietary Fund Type

The focus of Proprietary Fund measurement is upon determination of net income, financial
position and cash flows. The accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America applicable are those similar fo businesses in the private sector. The following is a
description of the Proprietary Fund of the District;

Enterprise Fund - The Enterprise Fund is utilized to account for operations that are
financed and operated in a manner similar to private business enterprises - where the
intent of the District is that the costs (i.e. expenses including depreciation and indirect
costs) of providing goods or services to the students on a continuing basis be financed or
recovered primarily through user charges; or, where the District has decided that periodic
determination of revenues earned, expenses incurred, and/or net income is appropriate
for capital maintenance, public policy, management control, accountability or other
purposes.

The District's Enterprise Fund is comprised of the Food Service Fund and Continuing
Education Program.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
B. Fund Accounting (Continued)

2. Proprietary Fund Type (Continued)

Enterprise Fund (Continued)

All Proprietary Funds are accounted for on a cost of services or “capital maintenance”
measurement focus. This means that all assets and all liabilities, whether current or
noncurrent, associated with their activity are included on their balance sheets. Their
reported fund equity (net total assets) is segregated into contributed capital and
unreserved retained earnings, if applicable. Proprietary fund type operating statements
present increases (revenues) and decreases (expenses) in net total assets.

Depreciation of all exhaustive fixed assets used by Proprietary Funds is charged as an
expense against their operations. Accumulated depreciation is reported on Proprietary
Fund balance sheets. Depreciation has been provided over the estimated useful lives
using the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives of the equipment used in the
operations of the Enterprise Funds are approximately 10 years.

3. Fiduciary Funds

Trust and Agency Funds - The Trust and Agency Funds are used to account for assets
held by the District in a trustee capacity or as an agent for individuals, private
organizations, other governments and/or other funds.

Private Purpose Scholarship Funds

Expendable Trust Fund - An Expendable Trust Fund is accounted for in
essentially the same manner as the governmental fund types, using the same
measurement focus and hasis of accounting. Expendable Trust Funds account
for assets where both the principal and interest may be spent. The Expendable
Trust Fund includes the Unemployment Compensation Insurance Fund and
Scholarship Funds.

Nonexpendable Trust Fund - A Nonexpendable Trust Fund is used to account
for assets held under the terms of a formal trust agreement, whereby the
District is under obligation to maintain the trust principal.

Agency Funds - Agency Funds are used to account for the assets that the District holds
on behalf of others as their agent. Agency Funds are custodial in nature and do not
involve measurement of results of operations. Agency Funds include payroll and student
activities funds.

4. Long-Term Debt

Long-term liabilities expected to be financed from governmental funds are accounted for in
the General Long-Term Debt, not in the governmental funds. This includes serial bonds
outstanding that are expected to be financed from governmental funds, the outstanding
principal balance on capital leases, lease-purchase agreements, compensated absences,
claims and judgments, early retirement incentive programs and rebatable arbitrage.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

C. Measurement Focus

1. Government-Wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements are prepared using the economic resources
measurement focus. All assets and liabilities associated with the operation of the District are
included on the Statement on Net Assets.

2. Fund Financial Statements

All Governmental Funds are accounted for using a flow of current financial resources
measurement focus. With this measurement focus, only current assets and current liabilities
generally are included on the balance sheet. The statement of revenues, expenditures and
changes in fund balances reports on the sources (i.e., revenues and other financing sources) and
uses (i.e., expenditures and other financing uses} of current financial resources. This approach
differs from the manner in which the governmental activities of the government-wide financial
statements are prepared. Governmental Fund financial statements therefore include a
reconciliation with brief explanations to better identify the relationship between the government-
wide statements and the statements for governmental funds.

All Proprietary Funds are accounted for on a flow of economic resources measurement focus.
With this measurement, all assets and all liabilities associated with the operation of these funds
are included on the balance sheet. Fund equity (i.e., net total assets) is segregated into
contributed capital and retained earnings components.  Proprietary fund-type operating
statements present increases (i.e., revenues) and decreases (i.e., expenses) in net total assets.

Fiduciary Funds are reported using the economic resources measurement focus.

D. Basis of Accounting

The modified accrual basis of accounting is used for measuring financial position and operating
results of all governmental fund types, expendable trust funds and agency funds. Under the modified
accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when they become both measurable and
available. “Measurable” means the amount of the transaction can be determined and “available”
means collectible within the current pericd or soon encugh thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of
the current period. State equalization monies are recognized as revenue during the period in which
they are appropriated. A one-year availability period is used for revenue recognition for all other
governmental fund revenues. Expenditures are recognized in the accounting period in which the fund
liability is incurred, except for principal and interest on general long-term debt which are recorded
when due.

Ad Valorem (Property) Taxes are susceptible to accrual and under New Jersey State Statute a
municipality is required to remit to its school district the entire balance of taxes in the amount voted
upon or certified, prior to the end of the school year. The District records the entire approved tax levy
as revenue (accrued) at the start of the fiscal year, since the revenue is both measurable and
availabie. The District is entitled to receive moneys under the established payment schedule and the
unpaid amount is considered to be an “accounts receivable”,

In its accounting and financial reporting, the District follows the pronouncements of the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) and the pronouncements of the Financial Accounting Standards
Board (FASB) and its predecessor organizations issued on or before Navember 30, 1989, unless they
conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements. The District's Proprietary Funds have elected not
to apply the standards issued by FASB after November 30, 1989.



2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

D. Basis of Accounting (Continued)

The accrual basis of accounting is used for measuring financial position and operating results of
proprietary fund types and nonexpendable trust funds. Under this method, revenues are recognized
in the accounting period in which they are eamed and expenses are recognized when they are
incurred.

E. Budgets/Budgetary Control

Annual appropriated budgets are prepared in the spring of each year for the General, Special
Revenue, and Debt Service Funds. The budgets are submitted to the county office for approval and
are voted upon at the annual school election on the third Tuesday in April. Budgets are prepared
using the modified accrual basis of accounting, except for the Special Revenue Fund as described
later. The legal level of budgetary control is established at line item accounts within each fund. Line
item accounts are defined as the lowest (most specific) level of detail as established pursuant to the
minimum chart of accounts referenced in N.J.A.C. 6:20-2A.2(m}1. Transfers of appropriatiocns may
be made by School Board resolution at any time during the fiscal year subject to the limitation of
N.J.A.C BA:23A-2.3 (et seq.).

Formal budgetary integration into the accounting system is employed as a management control
device during the year. For governmental funds, there are no substantial differences between the
budgetary basis of accounting and accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America with the exception of the legally mandated revenue recognition of the last state aid payment
for budgetary purposes only and the Special Revenue Fund as noted below. Encumbrance
accounting is also employed as an extension of formal budgetary integration in the Governmental
Fund types. Unencumbered appropriations lapse at fiscal year end.

The accounting records of the Special Revenue Fund are maintained on the grant accounting
budgetary basis. The grant accounting budgetary basis differs from GAAP in that the grant
accounting budgetary basis recognizes encumbrances as expenditures and also recognizes the
related revenues, whereas the GAAP basis does not. Sufficient supplemental records are maintained
to allow for the presentation of GAAP basis financial reports.

The following presents a reconciliation of the General Fund revenue and Special Revenue Fund
revenue from the budgetary basis of accounting as presented in the Combined Statement of
Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual - General, Special
Revenue and Debt Service Funds to the GAAP hasis of accounting as presented in the Combined
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - All Governmental Fund
Types.



2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {Continued)

E. Budgets/Budgetary Controf (Continued)

Special
General Fund Revenue Fund

Sources/Inflows of Resources:
Actual amounts (budgetary basis) "revenue”
from the budgetary comparison schedule $ 41,325,030.95 $ 780,668.28

Difference - Budget-to-GAAP:
State aid payment recognized for GAAP
statements in the current year previously
recognized for budgetary statements.

State aid payment recognized for budgetary
purposes, not recognized for GAAP
statements until the subsequent year. {60,415.00)

Total revenues as reported on the statement of
revenues, expenditures and changes in fund
balances - governmental funds $ 41,265,515.95 $ 780,668.28

Uses/Qutflows of Resources:
Actual amounts (budgetary basis) "total outflows™
from the budgetary comparison schedule $41,190,424.76 $ 780,668.28

Differences - Budget-to-GAAP:

Transfers to and from other funds are presented
as outflows of budgetary resources but are not
expenditures for financial reporting purposes.
Net transfers {outflows) from general fund.

Total expenditures as reported on the statement of

revenues, expenditures and changes in fund
balances - governmental funds including transfers. $ 41,190,424.75 $ 780,668.28

F. Encumbrances

Under encumbrance accounting purchase orders, contracts and other commitments for the
expenditure of resources are recorded to reserve a portion of the applicable appropriation. Open
encumbrances in governmental funds, other than the Special Revenue Fund, are reported as
reservations of fund balances at fiscal year end as they do not constitute expenditures or liabilities but
rather commitments related to unperformed contracts for goods and services.

Open encumbrances in the Special Revenue Fund, for which the District has received advances, are
reflected in the balance sheet as deferred revenues at fiscal year end.

The encumbered appropriation authority carries over into the next fiscal year. An entry will be made
at the beginning of the next fiscal year to increase the appropriation reflected in the certified budget
by the outstanding encumbrance amount as of the current fiscal year end.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

G. Assets, Liabilities and Equity

1. Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments

Cash and cash equivalents include petty cash, change funds, cash in banks and all highly liquid
investments with a maturity of three months or less at the time of purchase and are stated at cost plus
accrued interest. U.S. Treasury and agency obligations and certificates of deposit with maturities of
one year or less when purchased are stated at cost. All other investments are stated at fair value.

New Jersey school districts are limited as to the types of investments and types of financial
institutions they may invest in. New Jersey Statute 18A:20-37 provides a list of permissible
investments that may be purchased by New Jersey school districts.

Additionally, the District has adopted a cash management plan that requires it to deposit public funds
in public depositories protected from loss under the provisions of the Governmental Unit Deposit
Protection Act ("GUDPA"). GUDPA was enacted in 1970 fo protect Governmental Units from a loss
of funds on deposit with a failed banking institution in New Jersey.

N.J.S.A. 17:9-41 et seq. establishes the requirements for the security of deposits of governmental
units. The statute requires that no governmental unit shall deposit public funds in a public depository
unless such funds are secured in accordance with the Act. Public depositories include Savings and
Loan Institutions, banks (both state and national banks} and savings banks the deposits of which are
federally insured. All public depositories must pledge collateral, having a market value at least equal
to five percent of the average daily balance of collected public funds, to secure the deposits of
Governmental Units. If a public depository fails, the collateral it has pledged, plus the collateral of all
other public depositories, is available to pay the full amount of their deposits to the Governmental
Units.

2. Inventories and Prepaid Expenses

Inventories and prepaid expenses, which benefit future periods, other than those recorded in the
Enterprise Fund are reccrded as an expenditure during the year of purchase,

inventories in the Proprietary Funds are valued at cost, which approximates market, using the first-in-
first-out (FIFO) method. Prepaid expenses in the Enterprise Fund represent payments made to
vendors for services that will benefit periods beyond June 30, 2012,

3. Allowance for Uncollectible Accounts

No allowance for uncollectible acgounts has been recorded as ali amounts are considered collectible.

4, Tuition Receivable

Tuition charges were established by the Board of Education based on estimated costs. The charges
are subject to adjustment when the final costs have been determined.

5. Tuition Payable

Tuition charges for the fiscal years 2010-11 and 2011-12 were based on rates established by the
receiving district. These rates are subject to change when the actual costs have been determined.

6. Short-Term Interfund Receivables/Pavables

Short-term interfund receivables/payables represent amounts that are owed, other than charges for
goods or services rendered to/from a particular fund in the District and that are due within one year.



2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

G. Assets, Liabilities and Equity (Continued)

7. Capital Assets

General capital assets result from expenditures in the Governmental Funds. These assets are
reported in the governmental activities column of the government-wide statement of net assets but
are not reported in the fund financial statements.

All capital assets are capitalized at cost (or estimated historical cost) and updated for additions and
retirements during the year. Donated fixed assets are recorded at their fair market values as of the
date received. The District maintains a capitalization threshold of $2,000.00. Improvements are
capitalized; the costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or
materially extend an asset’s life are not.

All reported capital assets except for land are depreciated. Improvements are depreciated over the
remaining useful lives of the related capital assets. Depreciation is computed using the straight-line
method under the half year convention over the following useful lives:

Asset Class Estimated Lives
School Buildings 50 years
Building Improvements 20 years
Electrical/Plumbing 30 years
Vehicles B years
Office and Computer Equipment 5-10 years
Instructional Equipment 10 years
Grounds Equipment 15 years
Food Service Equipment 7-20 years

8. Compensated Absences

Compensated absences are those absences for which employees will be paid, such as vacation, sick
leave and sabbatical leave. A liability for compensated absences that are aftributable to services
already rendered, and that are not contingent on a specific event that is outside the control of the
District and its employees, is accrued as the employees earn the rights to the benefits. Compensated
absences that relate to future services, or that are contingent on a specific event that is outside the
control of the District and its employees, are accounted for in the period in which such services are
rendered or in which such events take place.

The entire sick leave and vacation leave liabilities are reported on the government-wide financial
staterments.

For Governmental Fund financial statements, the current portion of unpaid compensated absences is
in the amount expected to be paid using expendable available resources. These amounts are
recorded in the account “compensated absences payable” in the fund from which the employees who
have accumulated unpaid leave are paid. The noncurrent portion of the liability is not reported.

In Proprietary and similar Trust Funds, compensated absences are recorded as an expense and
liability of the fund that will pay for them.



2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

G. Assets, Liabilities and Equity (Continued)

9. Accrued Liabilities and Long-Term Obligations

All payables, accrued liabilities and long-term obligations are reported in the government-wide
financial statemenis.

In general, payables and accrued liabilities that, once incurred, are paid in a timely manner and in full
from current financial resources, are reported as obligations of the governmental funds. However, the
noncurrent portion of capital leases, compensated absences and loans payable that will be paid from
governmental funds are reported as a liability in the fund financial statements only to the extent that
they are normally expected to be paid with expendable, available financial resources.

10. Net Agsets

Net assets represent the difference between assets and liabilities. Net assets invested in capital
assets, net of related debt consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the
outstanding balances of any borrowings used for the acquisition, construction or improvement of
those assets. Net assets are reported as restricted when there are limitations imposed on their use
either through the enabling legislation adopted by the District or through external restrictions imposed
by creditors, grantors or laws or regulations of other governments.

11. Deferred Revenue

Deferred revenue in the General and Special Revenue Fund represent program revenues that have
been received but not yet earned.

12. Fund Equity

Contributed capital represents the amount of fund capital contributed to the Proprietary Funds from
other funds. Reserves represent those portions of fund equity not available for appropriation for
expenditure or legally segregated for a specific future use. Designated fund balances represent plans
for future use of financial resources.

13. Fund Balance Reserves

The School District reserves those portions of fund balance which are legally segregated for a
specific future use or which do not represent available expendable rescurces and, therefore, are not
available for appropriation or expenditure. Unreserved fund balance indicates that portion which is
available for appropriation in future periods. A fund balance reserve has been established for
encumbrances.

14. Proprietary Funds Revenues and Expenses

Proprietary Funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services in connection with a Proprietary
Fund's principal ocngoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the School District
Enterprise Fund, {the Food Service) are charges to customers for sales of food service. Operating
expenses for Enterprise Funds include the cost of sales and services, administrative expense and
depreciation on Capital Assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported
as nonoperating revenues and expenses.



2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

G. Assets, Liabilities and Equity (Continued)

15. Rebatable Arbitrage

Rebatable arbitrage results from investing the proceeds of borrowed funds either directly or indirectly
into investments that are higher in yield than the bond yield incurred on the borrowed funds. In
accordance with GASB 34, rebatable arbitrage is treated like a claim or judgment. All interest income
is reported as revenue of the Capital Projects Fund. The liability, if any, is recorded in the “Statement
of Net Assets”.

16. Non-Monetary Transactions

Commodities received under the Federal Food Distribution Program are received by the District and
are recorded as nonoperating revenue when received in the Food Service Enterprise Fund at market
value. The use of the commodities is included in cost of sales.

17. Allocation of Expenses

The District reports all direct expenses by function in the Statement of Activities. Direct expenses are
those that are clearly identifiable with a function. Employee benefits, including the employer's share
of social security, workers compensation, and medical and dental benefits, were allocated based on
salaries of that program. Depreciation expense, where practicable, is specifically identified by
function and is included in the direct expense column of the Statement of Activities. Depreciation
expense that couid not be attributed to a specific function is reported separately on the Statement of
Activities. No expenses were allocated as “Indirect Expenses”.

18. Extracrdinary and Special ltems

Extraordinary items are ftransactions or events that are unusual in nature and infrequent in
occurrence. Special items are transactions or events that are within the control of management and
are either unusual in nature or infrequent in occurrence. Neither of these types of transactions
occurred during the fiscal year.

19. Secondary Market Disclosure

Solely for purposes of complying with Rule 1602-12 of the Securities and Exchange Commission, as
amended and interpreted from time to time (the "Rule”), and provided that the Bonds are not exempt
from the Rule and provided that the Bonds are not exempt from the requirements in accordance with
Paragraph (d) of the Rule, for so long as the Bonds remain outstanding (unless the Bonds have been
wholly defeased), the municipality shall provide for the benefit of the holders of the Bonds and the
beneficial owners thereof various financial documents relating to the financial conditions of the
Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board through the Electronic Municipal Access Data Port (the
“MSRB").

3. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS

Cash and Cash Equivalents include petty cash, change funds, amounts in deposits, and short-term
investments with original maturities of three months or less.



3. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS {(Continued)

Investments are stated at cost, which approximates market, The District classifies certificates of deposit
that have original maturity dates of more than three months but less than twelve months from the date of
purchase, as investments. The District is in compliance with GASB Statement No. 3 as amended by
GASB Statement No. 40.

A. Deposits

New Jersey statutes require that school districts deposit public funds in public depositories located in New
Jersey that are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation, or by any other agency of the
United States that insures deposits made in public depositories. School districts are also permitted to
deposit public funds in the State of New Jersey Cash Management Fund.

New Jersey statutes require public depositories to maintain collateral for deposits of public funds that
exceed depository insurance limits as follows:

The market value of the collateral must equal at least 5% of the average daily balance of
collected public funds on deposit.

In addition to the above collateral requirement, if the public funds deposited exceed 75% of the capital
funds of the depository, the depository must provide collateral having a market value at least equal to
100% of the amount exceeding 75%.

All collateral must be deposited with the Federal Reserve Bank of New York, the Federal Reserve Bank
of Philadelphia, the Federal Home Loan Bank of New York or a banking institution that is a member of the
Federal Reserve Systern and has capital funds of not less then $25,000,000.

As of June 30, 2012, cash and cash equivalents (Deposits) of the District consisted of the following:

Cash
and Cash

Eguivalents

Checking Accounts, Interest Bearing $ 4,143164.97
MBIA 1,071,735.89

Total Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 5,214,900.86

Of the total amount, deposits of $1,071,735.89 have been earmarked fowards the Capital Reserve
Account (See Note 14).

Allocation of Cash and Cash Equivalents

Unrestricted $ 3,080,655.17
Restricted 2,134,245.69

$ 5,214,900.86
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3. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS {Continued)
B. investments
New Jersey statutes permit the District to purchase the following types of securities:

= Bonds or other obligations of the United States of America or obligations guaranteed by the
United States of America. This includes instruments such as Treasury bills, notes and bonds.

= Government money market mutual funds.

= Any federal agency or instrumentality obligation authorized by Congress that matures within
397 days from the date of purchase, and has a fixed rate of interest not dependent on any
index or external factors.

= Bonds or other cbligations of the school district or local unit of which the school district is a
part.

= Any other obligations with maturities not exceeding 397 days, as permitted by the Division of
Investments, New Jersey State Department of Treasury.

* Local government investment pools.

» New Jersey State Cash Management Fund.

» Repurchase agreements of fully collateralized securities, subject to special conditions.
Risk Analysis - The market value of the investments approximates the carrying value. These investments
are collateralized with U.S. Treasury Securities held by the District's trustee in the name of the District or
are direct obligations explicitly guaranteed by the Federal Gevernment and therefore not exposed to
custodial credit risk at year end.

4. INTERGOVERNMENTAL ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

Intergovernmental Accounts Receivable at June 30, 2012 consisted of Federal source, State source,

transportation and other revenue. All receivables are considered collectible in full. A summary of the
principal items of intergovernmental receivables follows:

Governmental
Fund Financial
Statements
State Aid:
General Fund:
Social Security Reimbursement - TPAF $ 64,615.87
Nonpublic Transportation - Cost Reimbursement 29,408.00
Extraordinary Aid 363,739.00
Special Revenue Fund:
IDEA Part B, Basic Regular 70,528.73
Title 1A 4,952.00
$ 533,239.60
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5. CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012 was as follows:

Governmental Aclivities
Nondepreciable:
Land
Censtruction-in-Progress

Assets with the Value Under $2,000.00 Not

Included on the Fixed Assets Report

Depreciable:
Improvements
Buildings and improvements
Machinery and Equipment

Less Accumusated Depreciation:
Improvements
Buildings and Improvements
Machinery and Equipment
Total Accumulated Depreciation

Governmental Activities Capital Assets - Net

Business-Type Activities:
Machinery and Equipment
Less: Accumulated Depreciation for
Machinery and Equipment

INVENTORY

The Proprietary Fund had a balance of $4,904.88 at June 30, 2012,

Beginning Ending
Balance Balance
July 1, 2011 Additions Retirements June 30, 2012
$  229918.00 $ $ 22091800
12,851,509.85 2.378,081.40 15,228,591.25
47,909.26 47.000.28
13,129,337.1 2,378,081.40 15,507 418.51
2,304.930.00 2,304,930.00
18,443 853.71 18,443 853.71
5415,307.34 161,464.77 (8,641.00) 5,568,221.11
26,164,181.05 161,464.77 (8,641.00) 26,317,004.82
39.263518.16 2,539,546.17 (8,641.00) 41,824,423.33
{1,673,405.27) {100,461.50) {1,773,866.77)
(17,335,515.46) (89,223.84) {17,424,739.30)
(4,364,687.07) {205,007 92) {4,569,694.99)
(23,373,607.80) {394,693.26) {23,768,301.08)
$ 15919.910.36 $ 253954617 {403,334.26) § 1805612227
$ 26854047 $ 32250000 (268,540.47) 5 322,500.00
{251,960.50) (5,039.80) {257,000.39)
$ 16,578.97 $ 32250000 {273,580.36) $ 65,499 61
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7. LONG-TERM DEBT

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012 the following changes occurred in liabilities:

Beginning Ending Due Within Long-Tem
Balance Additions Retirements Balance One Year Portion
Governmental
Activities:
Bonds Payable -
General
Obligation
Debt $ 14,120,000.00 3 5 64500000 $ 13,47500000 §$ 64500000 $ 12,830,000.00
Compensated
Absences
Payable 569,609.00 19,033.50 588,642 .50 588,642.50
Capital Leases 238,631.96 14,063.24 130,491.18 122,204.04 86,111.16 36,092.88
808,240.96 33,006.74 130,491.16 710,846.54 86,111.16 624.735.38

$ 14,928,240.96 $ 33,096.74 % 77549116 § 14,185,846.54 § 73111116 § 13,454,735.38

A. Bonds and Loans Payable Currently Outstanding are Summarized as Follows:

School District Bonds, Series 2008

Improvements to the various schools within the

District. Authorized and Issued $14,120,000.00

dated June 19, 2008. Final maturity is due

September 1, 2024 with interest rates from

4.125% to 5.00%. $ 13,475,000.00

The Bonds are general obligations of the Board and are secured by a pledge of the full faith and credit of
the Board for the payment of the principal thereof and the interest therecn and, unless paid from other
sources, the Bonds are payable from ad valorem taxes to be levied on all taxable real property in the
school district, without limitation as to rate or amourni. The Bonds are additionally secured by the
provisions of the New Jersey School Bond Reserve Act.

The District, in conjunction with the issuance of the Bonds, has agreed to undertake and provide certain
information to Bondhelders on a continuing basis. The Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC")
Rule 156c2-12(b)(5) "Continuing Disclosure” requirements, which the District has adopted, requires that
various financial information about the District and the Municipality be provided annually to various
information repositories. The requirement effective for the fiscal years ended June 30, 1996 through June
30, 2012 has been complied with.

Bonds are authorized in accordance with State law by the voters of the Municipality through referendums.
All bonds are retired in serial installments within the statutory period of usefulness. Bonds issued by the
Board are general obligation bonds.
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7. LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)

B. Debt Service Requirements

Debt service requirements on serial bonds payable at June 30, 2012 are as follows:

Fiscal Year
Ending June 30 Principal Interest Total
2013 845,000.00 558,315.63 $ 1,203,315.63
2014 680,000.00 530,987.50 1,210,987.50
2015 860,000.00 499,225.00 1,359,225.00
2016 860,000.00 483,750.00 1,323,750.00
2017 940,000.00 426,625.00 1,366,625.00
2018 940,000.00 387,850.00 1,327,850.00
2019 1,115,000.00 345,465.63 1,460,465.63
2020 1,115,000.00 299,471.88 1,414,471.88
2021 1,200,000.00 251,725.00 1,451,725.00
2022 1,290,000.00 199,562.50 1,489,562.50
2023 1,290,000.00 144,737.50 1,434,737.50
2024 1,290,000.00 89,912.50 1,379,912.50
2025 1,250,000.00 31,250.00 1,281,250.00

$ 13,475,000.00 $4,228,878.14 $ 17,703,878.14

C. Bonds Authorized But Not Issued
As of June 30, 2012, the Board had no authorized but not issued bonds.

D. Capital Lease Obligations Payable

Lease/Purchase Agreements

The District is leasing copiers totaling $525,654.00 under capital leases. All capital leases are for
terms of four to five years. The following is a schedule of the future minimum [ease payments under
these capital leases, and the present value of the net minimum lease payments at June 30, 2012:

Year Ending
June 30 Total
2013 $ 130,491.16
2014 86,111.16
2015 36,002.88

Total Minimum Lease Payment $ 252.695.20



8. PENSION PLANS

Description of Plans

All required employees of the District are covered by either the Public Employees' Retirement System or
the Teachers' Pension and Annuity Fund that have been established by state statute and are
administered by the New Jersey Division of Pension and Benefits (Division). According to the State of
New Jersey Administrative Code, all obligations of both Systems will be assumed by the State of New
Jersey should the Systems terminate. The Division issues a publicly available financial report that
includes the financial statements and required supplementary information for the Public Employees’
Retirement System and the Teachers' Pension and Annuity Fund. These reports may be obtained by
writing to the Division of Pensions and Benefits, PO Box 295, Trenton, New Jersey, 08625.

Teachers' Pension and Annuity Fund (TPAF)

The Teachers' Pension and Annuity Fund was established as of January 1, 1955, under the
provisions of N.J.S.A. 18A:66 to provide retirement benefits, death, disability and medical
benefits to certain qualified members. The Teachers' Pension and Annuity Fund is considered a
cost-sharing multiple-employer plan with a special funding situation, as under current statute, all
employer contributions are made by the State of New Jersey on behalf of the District and the
system's other related non-contributing employers. Membership is mandatory for substantially
all teachers or members of the professional staff certified by the State Board of Examiners, and
employees of the Department of Education who have titles that are unclassified, professicnal
and certified.

Public Employees’ Retirement System (PERS)

The Public Employees' Retirement System (PERS) was established as of January 1, 1955 under
the provisions of N.J.S.A. 43:15A to provide retirement, death, disability and medical benefits to
certain qualified members. The Public Employees' Retirement System is a cost-sharing multiple-
employer plan. Membership is mandatory for substantially all full-time employees of the State of
New Jersey or any county, municipality, school district, or public agency, provided the employee
is not required to be a member of another state-administered retirement system or other state or
local jurisdiction. '

Significant Legislation

During the year ended June 30, 1297, legislation was enacted (Chapter 114, P.L. 1997) authorizing the
New Jersey Economic Development Authority to issue bonds, notes or other obligations for the purpose
of financing, in full or in part, the State of New Jersey's portion of the unfunded accrued liability under the
State of New Jersey retirement systems. Additional legislation enacted during the year ended June 30,
1997 (Chapter 115, P.L. 1997) changed the asset valuation method from market related value to full-
market value. This legislation also contained a provision {o reduce the employee contribution rate by 1/2
of 1% to 4.5% for calendar years 1998 and 1999, and to allow for a reduction in the employee's rate after
calendar year 1999, providing excess valuation assets are available. The legislation also provided that
the Districts’ normal contributions to the Fund may be reduced based on the revaluation of assets. Due to
recognition of the bond proceeds and the change in asset valuation method as a result of enactment of
Chapters 114 and 115, all unfunded accrued liabilities were eliminated, except for the unfunded liability
for local early retirement incentive benefits, accordingly, the pension costs for TPAF and PERS were
reduced.
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PENSION PLANS (Continued)

Vesting and Benefit Provisions

The vesting and benefit provisions for PERS are set by N.J.S.A. 43:15A and 43.3B, and N.J.5.A, 18A:6C
for TPAF. All benefits vest after eight to ten years of service, except for medical benefits that vest after 25
years of service. Retirement benefits for age and service are available at age 60 and are generally
determined to be 1/55 of the final average salary for each year of service credit as defined. Final average
salary equals the average salary for the final three years of service prior to retirement (or highest three
years’ compensation if other than the final three years). Members may seek early retirement after
achieving 25 years of service credit or they may elect deferred retirement after achieving eight to ten
years of service in which case benefits would begin the first day of the month after the member attains
normal retirement age. The TPAF and PERS provides for specified medical benefits for members who
retire after achieving 25 years of qualified service, as defined, or under the disability provisions of the
system.

Members are always fully vested for their own contributions and, after three years of service credit,
become vested for 2% of related interest earned on the contributions. In the case of death before
retirement, members’ beneficiaries are entitled to full interest credited to the members’ accounts.

Pension benefits for members enrolled in the system after May 21, 2011 would be based on 1/60" of the
average annual compensation for the last five years of service or any five fiscal years of membershlp that
provide the largest benefit to the member of the member's beneficiary.

Contribution Requirements

The contribution policy is set by New Jersey State Statutes and, in most retirement systems, contributions
are required by active members and contribution employers. Plan member and employer contributions
may be amended by State of New Jersey legislation. In accordance with the provisions of Chapter 78,
P.L. 2011, employee pension contribution rates for TPAF and PERS is currently 6.5% of employees'
- annual compensation, as defined.

Employee contributions for TPAF and PERS employees will be increased from 6.5% to 7.5% to be
phased in equally over a 7 year period beginning July 2012. The contribution rate will increase by 0.14%
each year with the first payroll of July until the 7.5% contribution rate is reached in July 2018.

Employers are required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate in both PERS and TPAF. The
actuarially determined employer contribution includes funding for cost-of-living adjustments and
noncontributory death benefits in the TPAF and PERS. In the PERS and TPAF, the employer
contribution includes funding for post-retirement medical premium. Undercurrent statute, the school is a
noncontributing employer of the TPAF.

During the year ended June 30, 2012 for TPAF, which is a cost-sharing plan with special funding
situations, the annual pension costs equals annual required contribution. For PERS, which is a cost
sharing multi-employer pension plan, the annual pension costs differ from the annual required
contribution due to the enactment of Chapter 114, P.L. 1897,

Three-Year Trend Information for PERS

Annual Percentage
Year Pension Net Cost of APC
Funding Cost (APC) to District Contributed
June 30, 2012 $ 482.451.10 $ 482,451.10 100%
June 30, 2011 471,283.48 471,283.48 100%
June 30, 2010 380,499.00 380,499.00 100%
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10.

PENSION PLANS (Continued)

Contribution Requirements (Continued)

Three-Year Trend Information for TPAF (Paid On-Behalf of the District)

Post-
Annual Percentage Retirement
Year Pension of APC Medical
Funding Cost (APC) Contributed Benefits
June 30, 2012 $ 564,579.00 100% $ 1,134,952.00
June 30, 2011 53,760.00 100% 1,141,862.00
June 30, 2010 58,463.00 100% 1,098,014.00

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012, the State of New Jersey contributed $564,579.00 to the
TPAF for normal pension and $1,134,952.00 for post-retirement medical benefits On-Behalf of the
District. Also, in accordance with N.J.S.A. 18A:66-66 the State of New Jersey reimbursed the District
$1,246,682.65 during the year ended June 30, 2012 for the employer's share of social security
contributions for TPAF members, as calculated on their base salaries. This amount has been included in
the basic financial statements, and the individual fund statement and schedules as a revenue and
expenditure in accordance with GASE 24.

Legislation enacted during 1993 provided early retirement incentives for certain members of TPAF and
PERS who met certain age and service requirements and who applied for retirement between certain
dates in the 1994 fiscal year. The early retirement incentives included: (a) an additional five years of
service credit for employees at least age 50 with a minimum of 25 years of service; (b) free health
benefits for employees at least 60 years old with at least 20 years of service; and (c) an additional $500
per month for two years for employees at least age 60 with 10 but less than 20 years of service. The
Board assumed the increased cost for the early retirement as it affected their district.

POST-RETIREMENT BENEFITS

Chapter 384 of Public Laws 1987 and Chapter 6 of Public Laws 1990 required TPAF and PERS,
respectively, to fund post-retirement medical benefits for those State employees who retire after
accumulating 25 years of credited service or on a disability retirement. P.L. 2007, ¢.103 amended the law
to eliminate the funding of post-retirement medical benefits through the TPAF and PERS. it created
separate funds outside of the pension plans for the funding and payment of post-retirement medical
benefits for State employees and retired educational employees. As of June 30, 2011, there were 93,323
retirees eligible for post-retirement medical benefits. The cost of these benefits is funded through
contributions by the State in accordance with P.L. 1994, ¢c. 62. Funding of post-retirement medical
premiums changed from a prefunding basis to a pay-as-you-go basis beginning in fiscal year 1994.

The State is also responsible for the cost attributable to Chapter 126, P.L. 1992, which provides free
health benefits to members of PERS and the Alternate Benefit Program who retired from a board of
education or county college with 25 years of service. The State paid $144 million toward Chapter 126
benefits for 15,709 eligible retired members in fiscal year 2011.

COMPENSATED ABSENCES

The District accounts for compensated absences (e.g., unused vacation, sick leave) as directed by
Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 16 {GASB 186}, “Accounting for Compensated
Absences”. A liability for compensated absences attributable to services already rendered and not
contingent on a specific event that is outside the control of the employer and employee is accrued as
employees earn the rights to the benefits.
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10.

1.

12.

COMPENSATED ABSENCES (Continued)

District employees are granted varying amounts of vacation and sick leave in accordance with the
District's personnel policy. Upon termination, employees are paid for accrued vacation. The District's
policy permits employees to accumulate unused sick leave and carry forward the full amount to
subsequent years. Upon retirement employees shall be paid by the District for the unused sick leave in
accordance with the District's agreements with the various employee unions.

The liability for vested compensated absences of the Governmental Fund types is recorded in the
statement of net assets. The current portion of the compensated absences balance of the governmenial
funds is reported separately on the statement of net assets.

The liahility for vested compensated absences of the Proprietary Fund types is recorded within those
funds as the benefits accrue to employees. As of June 30, 2012, no liability existed for compensated
absences in the Proprietary Fund types.

DEFERRED COMPENSATION

The District offers its employees a choice of various deferred compensation plans created in accordance
with Internal Revenue Code Section 403(b). The plans, which are administered by the various entities,
permits participants to defer a pertion of their salary until future years. Amounts deferred under the plans
are not available to employees until termination, retirement, death or unforeseeable emergency.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to forts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of
assetls; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. Settled claims resulting from

these risks have not exceeded commercial insurance coverage in any of the past three fiscal years.

Property and Liability Insurance

The District maintains commercial insurance coverage for property, liability and surety bonds. A complete
schedule of insurance coverage can be found in the Statistical Section of this Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report.

New Jersey Unemployment Compensation Insurance

The District has elected to fund its New Jersey Unemployment Compensation Insurance under the
"Benefit Reimbursement Method". Under this plan, the District is required to reimburse the New Jersey
Unemployment Trust Fund for benefits paid to its former employees and charged to its account with the
State. The District is billed quarterly for amounts due to the State. The following is a summary of District
contributions, employee contributions, reimbursements to the State for benefits paid and the ending
balance of the District's Expendable Trust Fund for the current and prior two years:

Fiscal Year

Ended District Employee Amount Ending
June 30, Contributions Contributions Reimbursed Balance
2011-2012 $ None $ 60,253.91 $ 132,535.91 $ 141,256.23
2010-2011 None 157,088.23 196,407 .91 213,538.23
2009-2010 None 65,836.82 96,696.38 252 473.36
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13. INTERFUND BALANCES AND TRANSFERS

The interfund receivable/payable as of June 30, 2012 will be liquidated in the normal course of business
in the succeeding year.

Interfund Interfund
Receivable Payable
Capital Projects Fund $ $ 74,377.98
Debt Service Fund 74,377.98
General Fund 135.65
Agency Fund 135.65
$ 74,513.63 $ 7451363

14. CAPITAL RESERVE ACCOUNT

A Capital Reserve Account was established by the Board by inclusion of $200,000.00 on June 25, 2001
for the accumulation of funds for use as capital outlay expenditures in subsequent fiscal years. The
Capital Reserve Account is maintained in the General Fund and its activity is included in the General
Fund Annual Budget. :

Funds placed in the capital reserve account are restricted to capital projects in the District's approved
Long Range Facilities Plan (LRFP). Upon submission of the LRFP to the department, a district may
increase the balance in the capital reserve by appropriating funds in the annual general fund budget
certified for taxes. A district may also appropriate additional amounts when the express approval of the
voters has been obtained either by a separate proposal at budget time or by a special question at one of
the four special elections authorized pursuant to N.J.S.A. 19:60-2. Pursuant to N.J.A.C. 6A:23A-14.1(g),
the balance in the account cannct at any time exceed the local support costs of uncompleted capital
projects in its approved LRFP.

The activity of the capital reserve for the July 1, 2011 to June 30, 2012 fiscal year is as follows:

Beginning Balance July 1, 2011 $ 713,869.89
Deposits:
Approved at May 2012 Election 506,866.00
1,220,735.89
Withdrawals:
Board Resolution 149,000.00
Ending Balance June 30, 2012 $ 1,071,735.89

The June 30, 2012 LRFP balance of local support costs of uncompleted capital projects is
$14,626,842.00. The withdrawals from the capital reserve were for use in DOE approved facilities
projects, consistent with the District's Long Range Facilities Plan.

15. FUND BALANCE APPROPRIATED

General Fund - Of the $3,230,955.41 General Fund fund balance at June 30, 2012; $522,488.83 is
reserved for encumbrances; $1,071,735.89 is reserved in the Capital Reserve Account; $1,065,000.00 is
unreserved and has been designated for subsequent years expenditures and appropriated and included
as anticipated revenue for the year ended June 30, 2012 and $639,011.69 is unreserved and
undesignated.
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15.

16.

A.

FUND BALANCE APPROPRIATED (Continued)

Capital Projects Fund - Of the $1,063,525.80 Capital Projects Fund fund balance at June 30, 2012,
$1,049,049.54 is reserved for encumbrances and $14,876.26 is unreserved and designated for
subsequent year's expenditures.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS

Grant Programs - The school district participates in federally and state assisted grant programs. These
programs are subject to program compliance audits by the grantors or their representatives. The school
district is potentially liable for expenditures which may be disallowed pursuant to the terms of these grant
programs. Management is not aware of any material items of noncompliance which would result in the
disallowance of program expenditures.

Litigation
R.N. and C.N. o/b/o C.N. v. Caldwell-West Caldwell Board of Education

The parties have just confirmed the terms of a Settlement Agreement whereby the district is agreeing to
reimburse the parents $50,000.00 toward the cost of their unilateral transportation and related services
provided to C.N. from April 2011 through August 2012; $20,000.00 toward the cost of make-up hours;
$30,000.00 towards reimbursement of their attorneys’ fees incurred in the action; and $1,025.00 per week
for transportation from September 1, 2012 through December 2012 at an approximate cost of $16,000.00.
The Settlement Agreement will be presented for board approval on December 10, 2012.

L.S. and M.S. o/b/o S.S. v. Caldwell-West Caldwell Board of Education

This case was settled on February 7, 2012. Pursuant to the terms of settlement, the district has agreed to
place the sixteen year old student at a residential placement at an annual cost of approximately
$245,000.00 per year.

L.G. and J.G. o/bio M.G. v. Caldwell-West Caldwell Board of Education

This case was a negligence action, brought by the parents of an eight year old child with autism for
damages allegedly sustained by the child while attending an in-district program. The case was settled in
September 2012, with the district’s insurance carrier paying the plaintiffs the sum of $110,000.00.

J.C. and M.C. o/bfo G.C. v. Caldwell-West Caldwell Board of Education

This case was settled in April 2012, with the district agreeing to place the student at The Craig School for
the 2012-2013 school year, at an approximate cost of $60,000.00, inclusive of transportation.

Arbitrage Rebate Calculation

In 1885, under the Tax Reform Act, the Arbitrage Rebate Law went into effect requiring issuers of tax
exempt debt obligations to rebate to the Federal Government all of the earnings in excess of the yield on
investments of proceeds of such debt issuances (the “rebate arbitrage”). The Rebate Regulations apply
to obligations issued after August 31, 1986. The arbitrage rebate liability must be calculated every
installment computation date (last day of the fifth bond year) or earlier if the bonds are retired, defeased
or refunded and pay at least 90% of the rebatable arbitrage (plus any earnings thereon) within 60 days
after such date.
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17. CALCULATION OF EXCESS SURPLUS

18.

19.

20.

In accordance with N.J.S.A. 18A:7F-7, the designation for Reserved Fund Balance - Excess Surplus is a
required calculation pursuant to the New Jersey Comprehensive Educational Improvement and Financing
Act of 1896 (CEIFA). New Jersey school districts are required to reserve General Fund fund balance at
the fiscal year end of June 30 if they did not appropriate a required minimum amount as budgeted fund
balance in their subsegquent year’s budget. There was no excess fund balance as a result of the 2011-
2012 school year.

RECONCILIATION OF FUND BALANCE - GENERAL. FUND

The Surpluses are Presented on a GAAP Basis and a Unreserved and
Reconciliation to the Budget Basis is as follows: Designated

Balance on a Budget Basis on the General Fund Budgetary
Basis Comparison $ 632,145.69

Less: Allocation of State Aid Payment of 0.00 Not
Recognized on a GAAP Basis 60,415.00

Balances on a GAAP Basis on the Governmental Fund
Balance Sheet $ 571,730.69

SECONDARY MARKET DISCLOSURE

Solely for purposes of complying with Rule 1602-12 of the Securities and Exchange Commission, as
amended and interpreted from time to time (the "Rule™}, and provided that the Bonds are not exempt from
the Rule and provided that the Bonds are not exempt from the reguirements in accordance with
Paragraph {d) of the Rule, for so long as the Bonds remain outstanding (unless the Bonds have been
wholly defeased), the municipality shall provide for the benefit of the holders of the Bonds and the
beneficial owners thereof various financial documents relating to the financial conditions of the Municipal
Securities Rulemaking Board through the Electronic Municipal Access Data Port (the "MSRBE").

SUBSEQUENT EVENT

The Caldwell-West Caldwell School District has evaluated subsequent events that occurred after the
balance sheet date, but before July 11, 2011. No items were determined to require disclosure.

66



REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY [INFORMATION - PART Il

67



C. BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULES
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CALDWELL-WEST CALDWELL SCHOOL DISTRICT
EDUCATION JOBS FUND PROGRAM
BUPGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
GENERAL FUND
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

C-1b
Budget Actual Variance
REVENUES
Federal Sources:
Education Jobs Fund $ 53,568.00 % 53,5668.00 $
Total Federal Sources 53,568.00 53,568.00
Total Revenue $ 53,568.00 $ 53,568.00 $ -
EXPENDITURES:
Current Expense:
Unaltocated Benefits - Employee Benefits
Social Security Contributions $ 3,572.70 $ $ 3,572.70
TPAF Reimbursement - Regular 3,283.30 3,293.30
Total Unallocated Benefits - Employee Benefits 6,866.00 6,866.00
Regular Program Instruction:
Salary of Teachers Grades 1-3 46,702.00 46,702.00
Total Regular Program Instruction 46,702.00 - 48,702.00
Total Expenditures $ 53,568.00 $ 46,702.00 $ 6,866.00
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NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
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CALDWELL-WEST CALDWELL SCHOOL DISTRICT
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
BUDGET-TO-GAAP RECONCILIATION
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
FOR THE FISCAIL. YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

c3
Note A - Explanation of Differences Between Budgetary Inflows and Outflows and
GAAP Revenues and Expenditures
Special
General Revenue
Fund Fund
Sources/Inflows of Resources
Actual amounts (budgetary basis) "revenug"
from the budgetary comparison schedule [C1] $ 4132593095 [C-2] § 78066828
Difference - Budget to GAAP:
State aid payment recognized for GAAP statements in the current
year previously recognized for budgetary statements.
State aid payment recognized for budgetary purposes, not
recognized for GAAP statements until the subsequent year. (60,415.00)
Total revenues as reported on the statement of revenues, expenditures
and changes in fund balances - governmental funds. [B-2] $ 4126551595 [B-2] $ 78066828
Uses/Outflows of Resources
Actual amounts (budgetary basis) "total outflows" from the [C1] $4119042476 [C-2] $ 780,668.28
budgetary comparison schedule
Differences - Budget-to-GAAP:
Transfers to and from other funds are presented as outflows of
budgetary resources but are not expenditures
for financial reporting purposes.
Net transfers (outflows) from general fund
Total expenditures as reported on the statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances - governmental funds
including transfers [B-2]1 % 41,19042476 [B-2] $ 780,668.28
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OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
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D. SCHOOL BASED BUDGET SCHEDULES (IF APPLICABLE)
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E. SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
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F. CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
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CALDWELL-WEST CALDWELL SCHOOL DISTRICT
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGETARY BASIS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

F:2
Revenues and Other Financing Sources:
Transfer from General Fund $ 148,000.00
Total Revenues 148,000.00
Expenditures and Other Financing Uses
Capital Outlay: ‘
Purchased Professional and Technical Services 138,665.54
Construction Services 1,745,762.81
Total Expenditures 1,884,428.35
Excess {Deficiency) of Revenues
Over/(Under) Expenditures (1,735,428.35)
Fund Balance - July 1, 2011 2,799,354.15

Fund Balance - June 30, 2012 $ 1,063,825.80




CALDWELL-WEST CALDWELL SCHOOL DISTRICT
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -
BUDGETARY BASIS
GROVER CLEVELAND MIDDLE SCHOOL WINDOWS
FROM INCEPTION AND FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

F-2a
Prior Current Authorized
Periods Year Totais Cosis
Revenues and Other Financing Sources:
Transfer from General Fund $ 548,392.00 $ $ 548,392.00 $ 548,392.00
State Rod Grant Section 15 337.472.00 337.472.00 337,472.00
Total Revenues 885,864.00 - 885,864.00 885,864.00
Expenditures and Other Financing Uses:
Purchased Professional and Technical
Services 70,037.56 70,037.56 70,037.56
Construction Services 616,645.00 616,645.00 616,645.00
Total Expenditures - 686,682.56 5386,682.56 686,682.56
Excess (Deficiency)} of Revenues Over/
{Under) Expenditures $ 885.864.00 $(686,682.56) $ 199.181.44 _$ 199.181.44
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CALDWELL-WEST CALDWELL SCHOOL DISTRICT
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -
BUDGETARY BASIS
JAMES CALDWELL HIGH SCHOOL - BLEACHER REPLACEMENT
FROM INCEPTION AND FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

F-2a1
Prior Current Authorized
Periods Year Totals Costs
Revenues and Other Financing Sources:
Transfer from General Fund 3 $ 149,000.00 $ 149,000.00 $ 149,000.00
Total Revenues - 149,000.00 149.000.00 149 000.00
Expenditures and Other Financing
Purchases Professional and
Technical Services
Construction Services
Total Expenditures - - - -
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over/(Under) Expenditures $ - $ 149.000.00 $ 149,000.00

$ 149.000.00

1



CALDWELL-WEST CALDWELL SCHOOL DISTRICT

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, PROJECT BALANCE AND PROJECT STATUS -
BUDGETARY BASIS

FIRE ALARMS - DISTRICT-WIDE

FROM INCEPTION AND FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

F-2
Revised
Prior Current Authorized
Periods Year Totals Costs
Revenues and Other Financing Sources:
Bond Referendum $ 769,511.25 $ $ 769,511.25 $ 769,5611.25
Total Revenues 769,511.25 - 769,611.25 769,511.25
Expenditures and Other Financing Uses:
Purchased Professional and Technical
Services 102,950.25 102,950.25 102,950.25
Construction Services §66,561.00 666,561.00 666,561.00
Total Expenditures 769,511.25 - 769,511.25 769,511.25
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over/
{(Under) Expenditures $ - % - $ - % -
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CALDWELL-WEST CALDWELL SCHOOL DISTRICT

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, PROJECT BALANCE AND PROJECT STATUS -
BUDGETARY BASIS

BOILER REPLACEMENT - DISTRICT-WIDE

FROM INCEPTION AND FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Revenues and Other Financing Sources:
Bond Referendum
Total Revenues

Expenditures and Other Financing Uses:
Purchased Professional and Technical
Services
Construction Services
Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over/(Under) Expenditures

F-2¢
Revised
Prior Current Authorized

Periods Year Totals Costs
$2.099,536.37 3 $ 2,099,536.37 $ 2,099,536.37
2,099 536.37 - 2,099, 536.37 2,099,536.37
241 674.71 (3,784.00) 237,890.71 237,890.71
1,792,993.00 1,792,993.00 1,792,993.00
2,034,667.71 (3,784.00) 2,030,883.71 2,030,883.71
$ 654.868.66 $3.784.00 $ 68652.66 $ 68,652.66
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CALDWELL-WEST CALDWELL SCHOOL DISTRICT
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, PROJECT BALANCE AND PROJECT STATUS -
BUDGETARY BASIS
AUDITORIUM UPGRADES, BAND ROOM UPGRADES AND MULTI-PURPOSE ROOM UPGRADES

FROM INCEPTION AND FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Revenues and Other Financing Sources:
Bond Referendum
Total Revenues

Expenditures and Other Financing Uses:
FPurchased Professional and Technical
Services
Construction Services
Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over/(Under) Expenditures

F-2d
Revised
Prior Current Authorized

Periods Year Totals Costs
$4,483,649.71 3 $ 4,483,649.71 $ 4,483,640.71
4,483,649.71 - 4,483,649.71 4,483,649.71
311,171.05 6,505.80 317,676.85 317,676.85
4,132 687 .44 87,700.57 4,220,388.01 4.220,388.01
4,443,858.49 94,206.37 4 .538,064.86 4 538,064,886
$ 3979122 § (94.206.37) $  (54,415.15) $ (5441515
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CAl DWELL-WEST CALDWELL SCHOOL DISTRICT
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, PROJECT BALANCE AND PROJECT STATUS -
BUDGETARY BASIS
RENOVATIONS AND CREATIONS OF SIG ROOMS
FROM INCEPTION AND FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

F-2e
Revised
Prior Current Authorized
Periods Year Totals Costs
Revenues and Other Financing Sources:
Bond Referendum $ 723,333.94 $ $ 723,333.94 $ 723,333.94
Total Revenues 723,333.94 - 723,333.94 723,333.94
Expenditures and Other Financing Uses:
Purchased Professicnal and Technical Services 65,241.51 65,241.51 65,241.51
Construction Sl_%WiCGS 658,092.43 658,092.43 658,092.43
Total Expenditures 723,333.94 - 723,333.94 723.333.94

Excess {Deficiency) of Revenues
Over/(Under) Expenditures ] - 3 - 3 - 5 -




CALDWELL-WEST CALDWELL SCHQOL DISTRICT
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, PROJECT BALANCE AND PROJECT STATUS -
BUDGETARY BASIS
ELECTRICAL SERVICE ENTRANCE - DISTRICT-WIDE
FROM INCEPTION AND FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

F-2f
Revised
Prior Current Authorized
Periods Year Totals Cosis
Revenues and Other Financing Sources:
Bond Referendum $ 630,925.00 $ $ 630,925.00 $ 630,925.00
Total Revenues 630,925.00 630,925.00 630,825.00
Expenditures and Other Financing Uses:
Purchased F’rofessional and Technical Services 19.085.14 19,085.14 19,085.14
Total Expenditures 18,085.14 - 18.085.14 19,085.14

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over/
{Under) Expenditures $ 611.839.86 3

L]

$ 611.839.86 $ 611,639.86
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CALDWELL-WEST CALDWELL SCHOOL DISTRICT

Revenues and Other Financing Scurces:
Bond Referendum
Total Revenues

Expenditures and Other Financing Uses:
Purchased Professional and Technical
Services
Construction Services
Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over/
(Under) Expenditures

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, PROJECT BALANCE AND PROJECT STATUS -
BUDGETARY BASIS
JEFFERSON SCHOOL - FRONT ENTRANCE RECONFIGURATION
FROM INCEPTION AND FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

F-2g
Revised
Prior Current Authorized
Periods Year Totals Costs
$159,962.18 $ $ 159,962.18 $ 159,962.18
159,962.18 - 158,962.18 159,962.18
64,297.18 64,297.18 64,297.18
95,665.00 95,665.00 95,665.00
159,962.18 - 159,962.18 159,962.18
$ - N - 3 - $ -
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CALDWELL-WEST CALDWELE SCHOOL DISTRICT
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, PROJECT BALANCE AND PROJECT STATUS -

BUDGETARY BASIS

LINCOLN SCHOOL - PLAYGROUND RENOVATION AND PARKING LOT RECONFIGURATION
FROM INCEPTION AND FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Revenues and Other Financing Sources:
Bond Referendum
Total Revenues

Expenditures and Other Financing Uses:
Purchased Professional and Technical Services
Consfruction Services

Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over/
(Under) Expenditures

F-2h
Revised
Prior Current Authorized

Pericds Year TJotals Costs
$ 650,293.58 $ 650,293.58 $ 650,293.58
650,293.58 - 650,293.58 650,293.58
39,450.33 39,450.33 39,450.33
610,843.25 610,843.25 610,843.25
650,293.58 - 650,293.58 650,293.58
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CALDWELL-WEST CALDWELL SCHOOL DISTRICT
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, PROJECT BALANCE AND PROJECT STATUS -
BUDGETARY BASIS
WASHINGTON SCHOOL - DRIVEWAY WIDENING

FROM INCEPTION AND FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

F-2i
Revised
Prior Current Authorized
Periods Year Totals Costs
Revenues and Other Financing Sources:
Bond Referendum $ 151,395.00 $151,395.00 $151,395.00
Total Revenues 151,395.00 - 151,395.00 151,395.00
Expenditures and Other Financing Uses:
Construction Sgervices 151,395.00 151,395.00 151,395.00
Total Expenditures 151,395.00 - 151,395.00 151,395.00

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over/
(Under) Expenditures
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CALDWELL-WEST CALDWELL SCHOOL DISTRICT
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, PROJECT BALANCE AND PROJECT STATUS -

BUDGETARY BASIS
BLACKTOP RESURFACING

FROM INCEPTION AND FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Revenues and Other Financing Sources:
Bond Referendum
Total Revenues

Expenditures and Other Financing Uses:
Purchased Professional and Technical
Services
Construction Services
Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over/
(Under) Expenditures

E-2j
Revised
Prior Current Authorized
Periods Year Totals Costs
$ 247.148.71 $ 247,148.71 $ 247.148.71
247,148.71 - 247 148.71 247 148.71
17,225.71 17,225.71 17,225.71
229.923.00 229,923.00 229 923.00
247,148.71 - 247 ,148.71 247,148.71
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CALDWELL-WEST CALDWELL SCHOOL DISTRICT
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, PROJECT BALANCE AND PROJECT STATUS -

BUDGETARY BASIS

KITCHEN EQUIPMENT UPGRADE

FROM INCEPTION AND FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Revenues and Other Financing Sources:

Bond Referendum
Total Revenues

Expenditures and Other Financing Uses:

Purchased Professional and Technical
Services

Construction Services
Total Expendifures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over/
(Under) Expenditures

F-2k
Revised
Prior Current Authorized

Periods Year Totals - Costs
$ 426,885.00 $ 426,885.00 $ 426,885.00
426,885.00 - 426.885.00 426,885.00
151,787.06 65,906.18 217,693.24 217,693.24
1,041,417.24 1,041,417.24 1,041,417.24
151,787.06 1,107,323.42 1,259,110.48 1,259,110.48
$275097.94  _$(1,107,323.42) (832,22548) $ (832,22548)
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CALDWELL-WEST CALDWELL SCHOOL DISTRICT

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, PROJECT BALANCE AND PROJECT STATUS -
BUDGETARY BASIS

Revenues and Other Financing Sources:
Bond Referendum
Total Revenues

Expenditures and Other Financing Uses:
Construction Services
Total Expenditures

Excess {Deficiency) of Revenues Over/

PROJECTED SOFT COSTS
FROM INCEPTION AND FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012
F-21
Revised
Prior Current Authorized

Periods Year Totals Costs.
$ 988,641.69 $ $ 988,641.69 $ 988,641.69
988,641.69 - 988,641.69 088,641.69
66,745.22 66,749.22 66,749.22
66,749.22 - 66,749.22 66,749.22
$ 921,892.47 $ - $ 921,892 47 $ 921.892.47

{Under) Expenditures
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G. PROPRIETARY FUNDS
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ENTERPRISE FUND
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CALDWELL-WEST CALDWELL SCHOQL DISTRICT
COMBINING SCHEDULE OF NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

61
Business-Type Activities -
Enterprise Funds
Food Continuing
Service Education Totals
ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 223,529.05 $193,606.21 $ 417,135.26
Accounts Receivable 31,267.15 31,267.15
Inventories 4.904.88 4 904 .88
Total Current Assefs 259,701.08 103,606.21 453,307.29
Noncurrent Assets:
Furniture, Machinery and Equipment 591,040.47 591,040.47
Less Accumulated Depreciation (257,000.39) (257,000.39)
Total Noncurrent Assets 334,040.08 334,040.08
Total Assets $ 593,741.16 $193,606.21 $ 787,347.37
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:
Accounts Payable $ 51,116.07 $ $ 51,116.07
Prepaid Revenue 3.147.37 38,170.00 41,317.37
Total Current Liabilities 54,263.44 38,170.00 92,433.44
NET ASSETS
Invested in Capital Assets, Nef of
Related Debt 11,540.08 11,540.08
Unrestricted 527,937.64 155,436.21 683,373.85
Total Net Assets $ 53947772 $155,436.21 3 694,013.93




CALDWELL-WEST CALDWELL SCHOOL DISTRICT

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Operating Revenues:
Charges for Services:
Daily Sales - Nonreimbursable Programs
Special Functions
Total Operating Revenues

Operating Expenses:
Cost of Sales
Salaries
Other Purchased Professional Services
General Supplies
Other
Depreciation
Total Operating Expenses

Operating Gain (Loss)
Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses).
Interest and Investment Revenue
Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)

Change in Net Assets

Total Net Assets - Beginning
Total Net Assets - Ending

G2
Business-Type Activities -
Enterprise Fund
Food Coentinuing Total

Service Education Enterprise
$411,442.52 $203,897.46 $615,339.98
23,499.38 23,499.38
434,941.90 203,897.46 638,839.36
162,075.39 162,075.39
185,573.85 199,188.43 384,762.28
19,371.00 19,371.00
28,598.68 28,598.68
59,900.93 59,900.93
5,039.89 5,039.89
460,559.74 199,188.43 659,748.17
(25,617.84) 4,709.03 {20,908.81)
465.61 60.02 525.63
465.61 80.02 525.63
(25,152.23) 4,769.05 {20,383.18)
564,629.95 150,667.16 715,297.11
$539,477.72 $ 155,436.21 $694,913.93
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CALDWELL-WEST CALDWELL SCHOOL DISTRICT

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Receipts from Customers

Payments to Other Operating Expenses
Net Cash Provided by (Used for} Operating Activities

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing
Activities
Purchases of Capital Assets
Net Cash Provided by Capital and Related Financing Activities

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Interest and Dividends
Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities

Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents
Balances - Beginning of Year

Balances - End of Year

Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to Net Cash
Provided by {Used for} Operating Activities:
Operating Income (Loss)
Adjustrments to Reconcile Operating Income
(Loss) to Net Cash Provided by (Used for)
Operating Activities:
Depreciation and Net Amortization
(Increase) Decrease in Accounts Receivable, Net
(Increase) Decrease in Inventories
increase (Decrease) in Accounts Payable
Increase (Decrease) in Prepaid Revenue

Total Adjustments

Net Cash Provided by {Used for) Operating Activities

G-3
Business-Type Activities -
Enterprise Funds
Food Continuing Total

Service Education Enterprise

$ 435,824.87 $ 209,097.45 $ 644,922.33
(448,237.41) (199,188.43) (647 425.84)
(12,412.54) 9,909.03 (2.503.51)
{322,500.00) {322,500.00)
(322,500.00) - (322,500.00}
465.61 60.02 525.63
465.61 60.02 525.63
(334,446.93) 9,969.05 (324,477.88)
557,975.98 183,637.16 741,613.14

$ 223,529.05 $ 193,606.21 $ 417,135.26
$ (25,617.84) $  4,709.03 $ (20,908.81)
5,039.89 5,039.89
55.00 55.00
(2,135.59) (2,135.59)
9,418.03 9,418.03
827.97 5,200.00 6,027.97
13,205.30 5,200.00 18,405.30
$ (12.412.54) $ 9,909.03 $ (2,503.51)
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INTERNAL SERVICE FUND
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H. FIDUCIARY FUNDS
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CALDWELL-WEST CALDWELL SCHOOL DISTRICT
COMBINING STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2012

Unemployment
Compensation

Trust
ASSETS:
Cash and Cash Equivalents $141,256.23
Total Assets $141,256.23
LIABILITIES:
Accounts Payable %
Intergovernmental Accounts Payable
Payroll Deductions and Withholdings
Total Liabilities $ -
NET ASSETS:
Held in Trust for Unemployment
Claims $141,256.23

Agency
Fund

$218,139.25

206.73

$218,345.08
_$218,345.98

$218,345.98
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CALDWELL-WEST CALDWELL SCHOOL DISTRICT
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGE N FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Unemployment
Compensation

Trust
ADDITIONS:
Contributions:
Plan Member § 60,188.76
Total Contributions 60,188.76
Investment Earnings:
Interest 65.15
Net Investment Earnings 65.16
Total Additions 60,253.91
DEDUCTIONS:
Quarterly Contribution Reports 16,875.84
Unemployment Claims 115,660.07
Total Deductions 132,535.91
Change in Net Assets (72,282.00)
Net Assets - Beginning of the Year 213,538.23

Net Assets - End of the Year

$141,256.23

111



ELEMENTARY SCHOOLS:

Jefferson
Washington
Wilson
Lincoln

Total Elementary Schools

JUNIOR HIGH SCHOOL.:
Grover Cleveland

Total Junior High School
SENIOR HIGH SCHOOL:
James Caldwell:
Activity Account
Athletic Account

Totat Senior High School

Total All Schools

CALDWELL-WEST CALDWELL SCHOOL DISTRICT
STUDENT ACTIVITY AGENCY FUND SCHEDULE OF RECEIPTS AND DISBURSEMENTS

FIDUCIARY FUNDS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

H:3
Balance Cash Cash Balance
June 30, 2011 Receipts Disbursements June 30, 2012
$ 1508275 $ 23174.41 $ 26,969.30 $ 11,287.86

10,711.67 25,259.97 25,869.75 10,101.89
35,679.24 19,581.90 20,898.00 34,363.14
17.212.04 13,272.77 13,564.09 16,920.72
$ 78,685.70 $ 81,289.05 $ 87,301.14 $ 72,673.61
$ 27,437.23 $ 5175275 $ 61,123.05 $ 18,066.03
$ 27437.23 $ 51,752.75 $ 61,123.85 $ 18,066.03
$111,632.76 $320,612.06 $324,424.52 $ 107,720.30
34,154.65 400.00 14,875.34 19,679.31
$ 145,687.41 $321,012.06 $339,299.86 $ 127,399.61
$251,810.34 £454,053.86 $487,724.95 $218,139.25
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CALDWELL-WEST CALDWELL SCHOOL DISTRICT

PAYROLL AGENCY FUND SCHEDULE OF RECEIPTS AND DISBURSEMENTS
FIDUCIARY FUNDS

ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents

Total Assets

LIABILITIES

Payroll Deductions and Withholdings
Net Payrcll
Intergovernmental Accounts Payable

Total Liabilities

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

H-4
Balance Balance
June 30, 2011 Additions Deletions June 30, 2012
$ 269.31 $ 26,805,941.38 $ 26,806,003.96 $ 206.73
$ 269.31 $ 26,805,941.38 $ 26,806,003.96 $ 206.73

$ 133.66 $ 10,949,508.22 $ 10,849,641.88 $
15,856,226.43 15,856,226.43
135.65 206.73 135.65 206.73
$ 269.31 $ 26,805,041.38 $ 26,806,003.96 $ 206.73
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STATISTICAL SECTION (UNAUDITED)
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INTRODUCTION TO THE STATISTICAL SECTION
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CALDWELL-WEST CALDWELL SCHOOL DISTRICT

DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING PROPERTY TAX RATES
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Unaudited

(Rate per $100 of Assessed Value)
BOROUGH OF CALDWELL

Board of Education

General

Fiscal Year Basic Cbligation Total
Ended June 30 Rate Debt Service Direct
2002 $7.61 $ 0.17 $7.78
2003 8.04 017 8.21
2004 8.37 0.18 8.55
2005 *Re-evaluation 0.92 0.02 0.84
20086 1.00 0.02 1.02
2007 1.04 0.02 1.06
2008 1.07 0.02 1.09
2009 1.07 0.03 1.10
2010 1.08 0.03 1.11
2011 1.11 0.03 1.14

Source: District Records and Municipal Tax Collector

TOWNSHIP OF WEST CALDWELL

Board of Education

General
Fiscal Year Basic Obligation Total
Ended June 30 Rate Debt Service Direct
2002 $1.60 $ .04 $164
2003 1.69 0.04 173
2004 1.75 0.04 179
2005 *Re-evaluation 1.79 0.04 1.83
2006 1.83 0.04 1.87
2007 1.90 0.04 1,94
2008 1.98 0.04 2.02
2009 2.09 0.05 2.14
2010 2.20 0.05 2.25
2011 1.14 0.03 147

Source: District Records and Municipal Tax Collector

J-7
Qverlapping Rates
Total Direct
Municipal and
Rate County Rate Overlapping
Caldwell Essex County Tax Rate
$ 3.8 $ 3.78 $ 1474
3.37 3.69 15.27
3.87 3.72 16.14
0.52 0.42 1.88
0.80 0.42 2.04
0.63 0.43 212
0.67 0.43 219
0.68 0.44 2,22
0.69 0.45 2.25
0.69 0.48 2.31
Overlapping Rates
Municipal Total Direct
Rate and
West County Rate Overlapping
Caldwell Essex County Tax Rate
$ 071 3 0.79 $ 3.14
0.73 0.79 3.25
0.75 0.78 3.32
0.81 0.78 3.42
0.85 0.78 3.50
0.91 0.78 3.63
0.99 0.79 3.80
1.00 0.89 4.03
1.03 0.93 4.21
0.55 048 2.20
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CALDWELL-WEST CALDWELL SCHOOL DISTRICT
PRINCIPAL PROPERTY TAXPAYERS
CURRENT YEAR AND NINE YEARS AGO

Unaudited
o8
BOROUGH OF CALDWELL
2010 2001
% of Total % of Total
Taxable District Net Taxable District Net
Assessed Assessed Assessed Assessed
Value Rank Value Value Rank Value
TAXPAYER
NJ Bell Atlantic $ 5,511,233 * $ 836,060 5 0.77%
Westover Associates 11,173,615 * 1,600,000 1 2.29%
Carlyle Towers, A Partnership 8,717,285 hd 1,060,200 2 1.52%
Panyork Group, Inc. 7,997,189 * 990,000 3 1.01%
Caldwell Plaza, Inc. 6,594,014 *
Hillside Realty 6,497,629 * 841,800 4 0.84%
S&S 550 Bloomfield Ave. LLC 4,988,889 *
Parkview Commeons Apartments 4,131,997 *
Sidebrook Associates 3,601,479 * 530,900 8 0.50%
Charles Eggert, Jr. * 615,000 6 0.59%
Rumsey Park Assoc. 3,555,082 * 581,600 7 0.55%
Wellmont Realty * 375,000 10 0.36%
East Parkway Assoc, * 464,800 9 0.44%
$ 62,768,412 * $ 7,895,360 8.43%
Source: Municipal Tax Assessor
*Data not provided.
TOWNSHIP OF WEST CALDWELL
2011 . 2001
% of Total % of Total
Taxable District Net Taxable District Net
Assessed Assessed Assessed Assessed
Value Rank Value Value Rank Vaiue
TAXPAYER
Lutheran Social Ministries, Inc. $ 81,000,000 1 711% $ 38,518,300 1 3.53%
LTS Lohmann Therapy Systems 32,498,600 3 2.85%
GR/SS Caldwell 38,433,800 2 3.37% 16,913,600 2 1.55%
Toyota Motor Sales 32,033,900 4 2.81% 13,668,100 3 1.25%
West Caldwell Plaza 22,911,600 5 2.01%
Ricoh of America, Inc. 0.00% 11,302,600 4 1.04%
Mountain Ridge Country Club 19,642,900 7 1.72% 8,500,000 8 0.78%
CMI Essex Property 20,420,000 5}
Leknarf Associates LLC 17,767,000 8 1.56%
Henderson Crive LLC 16,943,500 9 1.49%
Passfield Properties 8,908,800 6 0.82%
lvers Lee 8,505,000 7 0.78%
Minnesota Mining & Manuf. Co. 8,164,000 o] 0.75%
Lohman Therapy Systems 10,378,200 5 0.95%
Eagle Reck Convalescent Ctr. 16,200,000 1.42% 7,900,000 10 0.72%
$ 297,851,300 24.36% $ 132,758,700 12.18%

Securce: Municipal Tax Assessor
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CALDWELL-WEST CALDWELL SCHOOL DISTRICT
PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS
LAST TEN CALENDAR YEARS

Unaudited
J-9
BCROUGH OF CALDWELL
Collected Within the Calendar
Year of the Levy
Calendar Year School Collections in
Ended Taxes Levied Percentage Subsequent
January 31, Calendar Year Amount of Levy Years
2002 $ 8,152,758.81 $ 8,152,758.81 100%
2003 8,622 957 .44 8,622,957.44 100%
2004 9,037,498.03 9,037,498.03 100%
2005 9,749,232.84 9,749,932.84 100% ——
2008 10,450,401.39 10,450,401.38 100% -—
2007 10,923,559.35 10,923,559.35 100%
2008 11,224,298.99 11,224,298.99 100%
2009 11,338,538.60 11,338,538.60 100%
2010 11,454,860.83 11,454,860.83 100%
2011 11,750,553.98 11,750,553.98 100%
TOWNSHIP OF WEST CALDWELL
Collected Within the Calendar
Year of the Levy
Calendar Year School Collections in
Ended Taxes Levied Percentage Subsequent
January 31, Calendar Year Amount of Levy Years
2002 $18,086,189.19 $18,086,189.19 100% -—
2003 19,146,527.06 19,146,527.06 100% —
2004 19,958,575.98 19,958,575.98 100% -—
2005 20,447 491.66 20,447,491.66 100% -
2008 21,119,552.10 21,119,552.10 100% —
2007 22.003,194.16 22,003,194.16 100%
2008 23,040,821.50 23,040,821.50 100%
2002 24,350,499.41 24,350,499.41 100% —
2010 25661,886.16 25,661,886.16 100%
2011 26,042,046.02 26,042,046.02 100%

Source: District records including the Certificate and Report of School Taxes (A4F Form),
NOTE: School taxes are collected by the Municipal Tax Collector. Under State Statute, a municipality is reguired

to remit to the school district the property tax amount voted upon and certified prior to the end of the school
fiscal year - June 30th.
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DEBT CAPACITY
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CALDWELL-WEST CALDWELL SCHOOL DISTRICT

RATIOS OF NET GENERAL BONDED DEBT QUTSTANDING
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

BOROUGH OF CALDWELL

School
Fiscal Year District
Ended June 30, Population*™
2002 7,599
2003 7,541
2004 7,489
2005 7,378
2006 7,246
2007 7.160
2008 7,180
2009 7.115
2010 7.115
2011 7,115

TOWNSHIP OF WEST CALDWELL

School
Fiscal Year District
Ended June 30, Population™

2002 11,155
2003 11,072
2004 10,934
2005 10,776
2008 10,597
2007 10,469
2008 10,391
2009 10,407
2010 10,407
2011 10,407

Unaudited

Net Assessed
Valuation
Taxable**

$ 104,870,892
105,041,936
105,695,147

1,034,280,810
1,028,587.810
1,028,111,010
1,029,857,952
1,034,926,284
1,035,051,357
1,031,511,186

Net Assessed
Valuation
Taxable**

$1,102,033,600
1,108,743,400
1,113,542,500
1,115,842,700
1,126,248,500
1,133,389,100
1,138,197,700
1,139,893,100
1,138,861,600
2,233,497,000

Net
Bonded
Debt

$ 1535819
1,350,651
1,229,817
1,082,331

902,068
690,128
5,250,528
4,828,647
4,515,035
4,455,609

Net
Bonded
Debt

$ 3,358,181
3,043,349
2,664,183
2,221,669
1,811,032
1,393,872
10,948,472
10,670,353
10,249,965

9,664,391

Ratio of
Bonded

Debt to

Assessed
Value

1.46%
1.29%
1.16%
0.11%
0.09%
0.07%
0.51%
0.47%
0.44%
0.43%

Ratio of
Bonded
Debt to
Assessed
Value

0.30%
0.27%
0.24%
0.20%
0.16%
0.12%
0.96%
0.94%
0.90%
0.43%

L
&N
Y

Net
Bonded
Debt

per Capita

$ 20211
179.11
164.22
148.05
124.49

96.39
733.31
678.66
634.58
626.23

Net
Bonded
Debt

per Capita

$ 301.05
274.87
243.66
206.17
170.99
133.14

1,053.65
1,025.31
984.91
928.64

Source; N.J. Department of Labor and Workplace Development, Division of Labor Planning and Analysis

**Essex County Abstract of Ratables
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CALDWELL-WEST CALDWELL SCHOOL DISTRICT
DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES DEBT

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2011

Unaudited
Debt
Cutstanding
Governmental Unit
Debt Repaid with Property Taxes:
Net Overlapping Debt of School District:

Township of Caldwell $

Township of West Caldwell 12,538,820.87

County of Essex 319,759,236.25

District Direct Debt

Total Direct and Cverlapping Bonded Debt
as of December 31, 2011

Source: Municipal Audit Reports

Estimated
Percentage

Applicable

100%
100%
3.87%

L
—
N

Estimated
Share of
Overlapping
Debt

$
12,538,820.87
12,374,682.44

14,765,000.00

$ 39,678,503.31
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2011

2010

2009

2008

CALDWELL-WEST CALDWELL SCHOOL DISTRICT

LEGAL DEBT MARGIN INFORMATION
LAST SEVEN FISCAL YEARS

Unaudited

Valuation Basis

Caldwell
Township

$1,078,678,807.00
1,112,295,241.00
1,125,548,415.00

1,150,336,298.00

West Caldwell
Township

$2,340,871,744.00
2,392,311,010.00
2,558,435,507.00

2,553,416,728.00

Total

$ 3,419,550,551.00

3,504,606,251.00
3,683,883,922.00

3,703,753,726.00

Average Equalized Valuation of Taxable Property

School Borrowing Margin (4% of $3,627,300,917.00)

Net Bonded Schoo! Debt as of June 30, 2011

School Borrowing Margin Available

$14,311,894,450.00

$ 4,770,631,483.33

$ 190,825,259.33
(13,475,000.00)
$ 177,350,259.33

Source: Equalized valuation bases were provided by the Annual Report of the State of New Jersey,
Department of Treasury, Division of Taxation.
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DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC INFORMATION
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CALDWELL-WEST CALDWELL SCHOOL DISTRICT

BOROUGH OF CALDWELL

Year

2001
2002
2003
2004
2005
2006
2007
2008
2009
2010
2011

TOWNSHIP OF WEST CALDWELL

<
(D
v}
0

2001
2002
2003
2004
2005
2006
2007
2008
2009
2010
2011

* Population information provided by the N.J. Department of Labor and Workplace Development.

* Personal Income has heen estimated based upon the Census 2000 per capita income and

Population

7.577
7,689
7,541
7,489
7,378
7,246
7,160
7,106
7,115
7,115
7,115

Population

11,198
11,155
11,072
10,934
10,776
10,597
10,469
10,391
10,407
10,407
10,407

municipal population presented.

* Per capita personal income by municipality source is U.S. Census Data.

Personal
Income

Not Available
Not Available
Not Available
Not Available
Not Available
Not Available
Not Available
Not Available
Not Available
Not Available
Not Available

Personai
Income

Not Available
Not Available
Not Available
Not Available
Not Available
Not Available
Not Available
Not Available
Not Available
Not Available
Not Available

DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC STATISTICS
1L AST ELEVEN FISCAL YEARS
Unaudited

Per Capita
Personal
Income

Not Available
Not Available
Not Available
Not Available
Not Available
Not Available
Not Available
Not Available
Not Available
Not Available
Not Available

Per Capita
Personal
Income

Not Available
Not Available
Not Available
Not Available
Not Available
Not Available
Not Available
Not Available
Not Available
Not Available
Not Available

—
AN
=~

Unemployment
Rate

1.6%
2.2%
2.2%
1.8%
2.2%
2.3%
2.1%
2.5%
5.1%
52%
4.9%

Unemployment
Rate

1.6%
22%
2.2%
1.8%
2.2%
3.3%
2.9%
3.6%
7.3%
7.3%
7.0%
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CALDWELL-WEST CALDWELL SCHOOL DISTRICT

PRINCIPAL EMPLOYERS

CURRENT YEAR AND TEN YEARS AGO

Unaudited
J-15
BOROUGH OF CALDWELL
2009 2001
Rank Rank
Employer Employees (Optional) Employees {Optional)
Caldwell Coliege 152 1 * *
Borough of Caldwell 87 2 * *
Sealfons * *
Foodtown * *
Jack's Supermarket 50 3 * *
Congregation Agudath Israel 50 4 * *
Saint Aloysius Church 50 5 * *
Wachovia Bank 12 8 * *
First Union Bank * *
Penn Federal 11 7 * *
PNC Bank 10 8 * *
TOWNSHIP OF WEST CALDWELL
2012 2002
Rank Rank
Employer Employees {Optional) Employees {Optional)

Ricoh of America, Inc. 600 1 * *
Vitaquest International 463 2 * *
Caldwell-\West Caldwell Board of Education 449 3 * *
Toyota Motor Sales 340 4 * *
Reitman Industries 325 5 * *
Shop Rite Supermarkets 250 6 * *
LTS Lohmann Therapy Systems 217 7 * *
RLB Food Enterprises, Inc. 175 8 * *
Lutheran Social Ministries 172 9 * *
Mountain Ridge Country Club 120 10 * *
Impact Instrumentation * *
Sharp Ivers-Lee * *
(Garden State Nutritionals * *
Kings Supermarkets, Inc. * *
Minnesota Mining & Manuf. Co. * *
Henderson Industries * >

Nesor Alloy

Source: Municipal Tax Assessor

*Information Not Available
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CALDWELL-WEST CALDWELL BOARD OF EDUCATION
INSURANCE SCHEDULE
JUNE 30, 2012

School Alliance insurance Fund (SAIF)
Property - Blanket Property

Unaudited

All Risk (subject to certain exclusions) including equipment breakdowns,
demoilition and increased cost of construction, EDP equipment, exira

expenses and newly acquired equipment

Sub-Limits:

Newly Acquired Property $

Builder's Risk
Property-in-Transit

Demolition and Increased

Cost of Construction
Flood
Earthquakes
Loss of Rents
Boiler and Machinery
Terrorism
Unnamed Locations
Loss of Revenues
Accounts Receivable
Fine Aris
Trees/Shrubs/Plants
Vehicles

Actual Cash Value

25,000,000
25,000,000
25,000,000

25,000,000
10,000,000
25,000,000

500,000

100,000,000
100,000,000

25,000,000
200,000
2,500,000
2,500,000
1,000,000

Coverage

$ 250,000,000

J-20
Sheet #1

Deductibie

3

1,000 Per Claim

{$1,000 Deductible/$75,000 per Vehicle for Hired Vehicles)

Blanket Dishonesty Bond (Includes Faithful Performance Elected Officials):

Per Loss

Theft, Disappearance and Destruction:
Per Person Inside the Premises
Per Loss Outside the Premises

Computer Fraud:;
Per Loss

Forgery and Alteration:
Per Loss

Commercial Casualty Coverage:

Per Occurrence, Boedily and Personal Injury, Property Pamage

Sexual Molestation Sub-Limit Each Loss/Per Member

Includes:

Comprehensive General Liability
Business Automobile Liability

Employee Benefits Liability

500,000

50,000.00
50,000.00

50,000

50,000

5,000,000
5,000,000

1,000

1,000
1,000

1,000

1,000
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CALDWELL-WEST CALDWELL BOARD OF EDUCATION

INSURANCE SCHEDULE
JUNE 30, 2012
Unaudited

Medical Expense:
Per Person

Environmental Impairment Liability:
Per Occurrence
Fungi Sublimit

School Leaders Professicnal Liability:
Education l.egal Liahility Each Claim/Each Member
Employment Practices Liability Each Claim/Each Member

Excess Liability:
Excess of Auto, General Liability and School Leaders Professional

Workers' Compensation and Employers Liability:
Workers' Compensation
Employers Liability

Coverage

$ 5,000

1,000,000
500,000

5,000,000
5,000,000

5,000,000

Per Occurrence/Aggregate Member Limit

Statutory Limits
5,000,000

J-20
Sheet #2

Deductible

5,000
50,000

5,000
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SAMUETL KLETN AND COMPANY KA

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

550 BROAD STREET, 11TH FLOOR 36 Wast MAN STREET, SUITE 303
- NewarE, N.J. 07102-4543 FrEraorD, N.J. 07728-2201

Prone(973) 624-G100 PHONE (732) 780-2600

Fax (973) 624-6101 Fax (732) 780-1030

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE
AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

The Heonorable President and Members
of the Board of Education

Caldwell-West Caldwell School District

County of Essex

West Caldwell, New Jersey 07006

We have audited the financial statements of the Board of Education of the Caldwell-West Caldwell School
District, in the County of Essex, State of New Jersey, as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012 and
have issued our report thereon dated October 2, 2012. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States and
audit requirements as prescribed by the Office of Finance, Department of Education, State of New Jersey.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Management of the Board of Education of the Caldwell-WWest Caldwell District is responsible for establishing
and maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting. In planning and performing our audit, we
considered Caldwel-West Caldwell Board of Education’s internal control over financial reporting as a basis for
designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Caldwell-West Caldwell Board of
Education’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Caldwell-West Caldwell Board of Education’s internal control over financial reporting.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal confrol such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial
statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis.

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in intemal control over financial
reporting that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or material weaknesses. We did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined
above.

MEMBERS AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
www.samuelklein-cpa-rrma.com 150



Compliance and Other Maiters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Caldwell-West Caldwell Board of Education’s
financial statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a
direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion
on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express
such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are
required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards and audit requirements as prescribed by the
Office of School Finance, Department of Education, State of New Jersey.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the audit committee, management, the Caldwell-
West Caldwell Board of Education, the New Jersey State Department of Education, and other federal and
state awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by
anyone other than these specified parties.

d Pubit School Accountant #194

M@*J L

SAMUEL KLEIN AND COMP
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

Aicense

Newark, New Jersey
October 2, 2012
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SAMUET. KLEIN AND COMPANY K-2

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

550 BroAD STREET, 11TH FLOOR 38 WEST MaIN STREET, SUITE 303
" NEwarr, N.J. 07102-4543 FrEEmOTD, N.J O7728-2201

PHONE (973) 624-6100 Prone(732) 780-2600

Fax (973) 624-6101 Fax (732} 780-1030

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS THAT COULD HAVE A DIRECT AND MATERIAL
EFFECT ON EACH MAJOR STATE AND FEDERAL PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133 AND STATE OF
NEW JERSEY OMB CIRCULAR LETTER 04-04

The Honorable President and Members
of the Board of Education

Caldwell-West Caldwell School Disfrict

County of Essex

West Caldwell, New Jersey 07006

Compliance

We have audited the compliance of the Board of Education of the Caldweli-West Caldwell School District, in
the County of Essex, State of New Jersey, with the types of compliance requirements described in the U.S.
Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133 Compliance Suppiement, and the New Jersey State
Aid/Grant Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal
and state programs for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012. Caldwell-West Caldwell Board of Education’s
major federal and state programs are identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. Compliance with the requirements of laws,
regulations, contracts and grants applicable to each of its major federal and state programs is the
responsibility of the Caldweli-West Caldwell Board of Education’s management. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on the Caldwell-West Caldwell Board of Education’s compliance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; the audit requirements as prescribed by the Office of
Schocol Finance, Department of Education, State of New Jersey; OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local
Governments, and Nonprofit Organizations, and New Jersey OMB's Circular 04-04, Singfe Audit Policy for
Recipients of Federal Grants, State Grants and State Aid. Those standards, OMB Circular A-133 and New
Jersey OMB’s Circular 04-04, require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above could have a
direct and material effect on a major federal or state program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a
test basis, evidence about the Caldwell-West Caldwell Board of Education’s compliance with those
requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We
believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for cur opinion. Our audit does not provide a legai
determination of Caldwell-West Caldwell Board of Education’s compliance with those requirements.

In our opinion, the Board of Education of the Caldwell-West Caldwell School District, in the County of Essex,
State of New Jersey, complied, in all material respects, with the requirements referred to above that could
have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal and state programs for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2012.

MEMBERS AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
www.samuelklein-cpa-rma.com 152



Internal Control Over Compliance

The management of the Board of Education of the Caldwell-West Caldwell School District is responsible for
establishing and maintaining effective internal control over compliance with the requirements of laws,
regulations, contracts and grants applicable to federal and state programs. In planning and performing our
audit, we considered Caldwell-West Caldwell Board of Education’s infernal control over compliance with
requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal or state program and to test and
report on internal control over compliance in accordance with CMB Circular A-133 and New Jersey OMB'’s
Circular 04-04 to determine the auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance.
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Caldwell-West Caldwell Board of
Education’s internal conirol over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a state
program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal confrol over compliance is a deficiency, or
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that
material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a state program will not be prevented, or
detected and corrected, on a timely basis.

Qur consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance
that might be deficiencies, or material weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control
over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the audit committee, management, the Caldwell-
West Caldwell Board of Education, the New Jersey State Department of Education, and other federal and
state awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by
anyone other than these specified parties.

JOS J. FACCONE B
/Licensed Public School Accountant #1924

SAMUELKLEIN AND CZM%

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

Newark, New Jersey
October 2, 2012
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CALDWELL-WEST CALDWELL SCHOOL DISTRICT

NOTES TO THE SCHEDULES OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS AND
STATE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE

JUNE 30, 2012

1. GENERAL

The accompanying Schedules of Expenditures of Federal Awards and State Financial Assistance includes the
activity of all federal awards and state financial assistance programs of the Board of Education, Caldwell-
West Caldwell School District. The Board of Education is defined in Note 1 to the Board's basic financial
statements. All federal and state financial assistance received directly from federal and state agencies, as
well as federal awards and state financial assistance passed-through other government agencies is included
on the Schedules of Expenditures of Federal Awards and State Financial Assistance,

2, BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

The accompanying schedules of expenditures of federal awards and state financial assistance are presented
on the hudgetary basis of accounting with the exception of programs recorded in the food service fund, which
are presented using the accrual basis of accounting. These bases of accounting are described in Note 2 to
the Board's basic financial statements.

The information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of OMB Circular A-133,
Audits of States, Local Governments and Non-Profit Organizations and New Jersey OMB's Circular 04-04.
Therefore, some amounts presented in this schedule may differ from amounts presented in, or used in the
preparation of basic financial statements.

3. RELATIONSHIP TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The basic financial statements present the general fund and special revenue fund on a GAAP basis.
Budgetary comparison statements or schedules (R31) are presented for the general fund and special revenue
fund to demonstrate finance-related legal compliance in which certain revenue is permitted by law or grant
agreement to be recognized in the audit year, whereas for GAAP reporting, revenue is not recognized until
the subseqguent year or when expenditures have been made.

The general fund is presented in the accompanying schedules on the modified accrual basis with the
exception of the revenue recognition of the one or more deferred June state aid payment in the current
budget year, which is mandated pursuant to N.J.5.A. 18A:22-44.2, For GAAP purposes payments are not
recognized until the subsequent budget year due fo the state deferral and recording of the one or more June
state aid payments in the subsequent year. The special revenue fund is presented in the accompanying
schedules on the grant accounting budgetary basis which recognizes encumbrances as expenditures and
also recognizes the related revenues, whereas the GAAP basis does not. The special revenue fund also
recognizes the one or more state aid June payments in the current budget year, consistent with N.J.S A.
18A:22-4.2.
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CALDWELL-WEST CALDWELL SCHOOL DISTRICT

NOTES TO THE SCHEDULES OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS AND
STATE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE
JUNE 30, 2012
(Continued)

3. RELATIONSHIP TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

The net adjustment to reconcile from the budgetary basis to the GAAP basis is $(60,415.00) for the general
fund. See Exhibit “C-3" {the Notes to Required Supplementary Information) for a reconciliation of the
budgetary basis to the modified accrual basis of accounting for the general and special revenue funds.
Awards and financial assistance revenues are reported in the Board's basic financial statements on a GAAP
basis as follows:

Federai State Total
General Fund $ 53,568.00 $ 4,049,550.65 $4,103,118.65
Special Revenue Fund 623,563.20 157,105.08 780,668.28
Debt Service Fund 370,184.00 370,184.00
Total Financial Assistance $ 677,131.20 $ 4,576,839.73 $ 5,253,970.93

4. RELATIONSHIP TO FEDERAL AND STATE FINANCIAL REPCRTS

Amounts reported in the accompanying schedules agree with the amounts reported in the related federal and
state financial reports.

5. OTHER

The amount reported as TPAF Pension Contributions represents the amount paid by the State On-Behalf of
the District for the year ended June 30, 2012. TPAF Sccial Security Contributions represents the amount
reimbursed by the State for the employer's share of social security contributions for TPAF members for the
year ended June 30, 2012,
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CALDWELL-WEST CALDWELL SCHOOL DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Section | - Summary of Auditor’s Restilts

Financial Statgments Section

Type of auditor's report issued: Ungualified

Internal control over financial reporting:

1) Material weakness(es) identified? Yes N
2) Significant deficiencies identified that are not
considered to be material weaknesses? Yes v
Noncompliance material fo basic financial statements
noted? Yes v
Federal Awards Section
Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for major
programs: Unqualified
Internal control over major programs:
1) Material weakness(es) identified? Yes N
2) Significant deficiencies identified that are not
considered to be material weaknesses? Yes N
Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be
reported in accordance with Section .510(a) of
Circular A-1337 Yes v
Identification of major programs:
CFDA Number(s) Name of Federal Program or Cluster
84.027 IDEA Part B and Preschool
84.367 Title 11A
Dollar threshold used to distinguish between
Type A and Type B Programs: $300,000.00

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? Y Yes

No

None Reported

No

No

None Reported

No

No
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CALDWELL-WEST CALDWELL SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012
{Continued)

Section | - Summary of Auditor’s Results
(Continued)

State Awards Section

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for
major programs: Unqualified

Internal control over major programs:
1) Material weakness(es) identified? Yes y

2) Significant deficiencies identified that are not
considered to be material weaknesses? Yes v

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be
reported in accordance with NJOMB Circular Letter
04-047 Yes v

Identification of major programs:

GMIS Number(s) Name of State Program
12-495-034-5120-089 Special Education Aid
12-495-034-5120-044 Extraordinary Special Education Aid
12-495-034-5095-002 TPAF Social Security
12-495-034-5095-001 TPAF Pension

Doliar threshold used to distinguish between

Type A and Type B Programs: $300,000.00
Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? ¥ Yes

Section Il - Financial Statement Findings

NONE

No

None Reported

No

No
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CALDWELL-WEST CALDWELL SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012
(Continued)

Section llI:
a} Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs:

NONE

b) State Award Findings and Questicned Costs:

NONE
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CALDWELL-WEST CALDWELL SCHOOL DISTRICT
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR YEAR AUDIT FINDINGS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

THERE WERE NO PRIOR YEAR AUDIT FINDINGS.
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